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IN THE MATTER OF
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§ BEFORE THE S 3 &
AN ENFORCEMENT ACTION AGAINST  § | NS F
MICHAEL LANTZ O'NEILL D/B/A § 2o
FRONTIER PARK RESORT AND § TEXAS COMMISSION ON

MARINA; §
RN101278034 §
§

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

EMERGENCY ORDER
APPOINTING A TEMPORARY MANAGER
OF A WASTEWATER UTILITY

On August 1, 2013, the Executive Director of the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (the “Commission” or *TCEQ"} issued this Emergency Order
pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE chs. 5 and 13, TeX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ch. 341 and
361, and 30 TEX. ADMIN. CoDE chs. 35, 291 and 305. The party made subject to this
order is Michael Lantz O’Nelll d/b/a Frontier Park Resort & Marina (“*Mr. O'Neill").

1.
FINDINGS OF FACT

Mr. O'Neill owns a wastewater syste'm located 6 miles east of Milam in Carrice
Creek, Sabine County, Texas (the “Sewer Utility”).

The Sewer Utility provides wastewater treatment service to approximately 38
full-time residences as well as rental units, a store, and a restaurant. Mr.
O’Neill charges each residence $55.66 per month for water, wastewater, and

trash services. As such, the Sewer Utility is a sewer utility as defined in 30
TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 291.3(52).

The Sewer Utility's wastewater permit, TCEQ Permit No. WQ00114015001,
expired on November 1, 2010. The Sewer Utility does not have a current

wastewater discharge permit, and the Sewer Utility has never had a
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity.

4. The TCEQ alleges that the Sewer Utility failed to provide appropriate
wastewater treatment so that a potential health hazard has resulted and
failed to adequately maintain facilities or to provide sufficient facilities
resulting in potential health hazards, extended outages, or repeated
interruptions. ("Exhibits A and B").
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Commission records show that the mailing address for Mr. O'Neill is 360
Frontier Drive, Hemphill, Texas 75948,

No other wastewater services are available to the more than 60 people who
are served by the Sewer Utllity.

During an Inspection of the Sewer Utility conducted on August 29, 2009, a
Beaumont Regional investigator documented that Mr. O’Neill violated
numerous requirements. The case was referred to the Office of Attorney
General on March 17, 2010. On December 20, 2010, the 353" Judicial District
Court in Travis County issued a Default Judgment and Permanent Injunction
(“Default Judgment”) against Mr. O'Neill. The violations are listed in the
Default Judgment attached as Exhibit C.’

On February 28, 2011, a TC'EQ Beaumont Regional investigator documented
that Mr. Q’Neiil was not in compliance with the Default Judgment.

On April 16, 2013, the TCEQ referred the case back to the Office of Attorney
General to pursue contempt and abstract of judgment for the Default
Judgment. ' -

On May 30, 2013, a TCEQ Beaumont Regional investigator documented that
the Sewer Utility was continuing to discharge untreated wastewater into
Toledo Bend Reservoir. Specifically, the water level in the chlorine contact
chamber was approximately 2 inches above the crest of the 90-degree v-
notch weir, with an estimated flow of 0.018 million gallons per day. Samples
taken in the chlorine contact chamber showed that the total chlorine residual
concentration was 0.01 mg/L; the pH was 7.42 SU; the dissolved oxygen

~ toncentration was 6.09 mg/L; and fecal coliform was 'S0,0QO colonies per 100

11.

mkL.

On July 29, 2013, a TCEQ Beaumont Regional investigator documented that
the Sewer Utility was continuing to discharge untreated wastewater into
Toledo Bend Reservoir and that the facility was failing to provide appropriate
wastewater treatment and failing to adequately maintain facllities resulting in
potential health hazards. Exhibits A and B. Specifically, the lift station pump
was running but was not pumping any wastewater out of the lift station.
Exhibits A and B. The lift station had approximately 2 feet of capacity before
overflowing. Exhibits A and B. Wet areas around the lift station and down
slope of the lift station indicated a recent overflow. Exhibits A and B.
Additionally, the clarifier contalned high amounts of bulking sludge and an
excessive sludge blanket. Exhibits A and B. The clarifier has a depth of 10
inches, and the sludge blanket was 9 inches deep. Exhibits A and B. Chlorine
was not being added to the effiuent, and the chlorine contact basin had
sustained severe corrosion. Exhibits A and B. The effluent at the Sewer Utility
was dark brown and thick. Exhibits A and B, The final basin contained bulking
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sludge, which was being discharged into Toledo Bend reservoir. Exhibits A and
B. Samples were taken just below the v-notch weir at the point of discharge.
Exhibits A and B. Finally, the chlorine pump was not functional. Exhibits A and
B. The following violations were documented:

a.

o

@

30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125 and TCEQ Defauit Order, Docket No.
2007-0449-MLM-E, Ordering Provision No. 2.b.ii., by falling to submit a
revised September 2006 Discharge Monitoring Report ("DMR") that
reflected the correct pH data for that reporting period. (Default
Judgment Violation No. 24.) A review of the integrated Compliance
Information System showed that the data had not been submitted.

30 TeX. ADMIN, CODE § 305.125(4) and TCEQ Default Order, Docket No,
2007-0049-MLM-E, Ordering Provision No. 2.c., by failing to develop
and implement operational and maintenance procedures to prevent
future discharges from the lift stations at the Sewer Utility. (Default
Judgment Violation No. 25.)

.30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 30.331(b), TEX. WATER CODE §§:26.0301 and
37.003, and TCEQ Default Order, Docket No. 2007-0449-MLM-E,
Ordering Provision No. 2.d., by failing to hire a licensed wastewater
operator and/or complete training and licensing requirements to
become a licensed wastewater operator. (Default Judgment Violation
No. 26.)

30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(1) and Permit No. WQ00114015001,
failing to adjust the feed rate of chlorine tablets to ensure that the total
chlorine residual is maintained between 1.0 and 4.0 mg/L in violation
of. (Default Judgment Violation No. 28.)

30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5) and Permit No. WQ00114015001,
failing to provide duplex pumping capability at the collection lift station.
(Default Judgment Violation No. 30.)

30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5) and Permit No. WQ00114015001,
failing to provide high water alarm systems at the collection lift station -
and the influent lift station. (Default Judgment Violation No. 31.)

TEX. WATER CODE § 26.121(a)(1), by failing to have a wastewater
discharge permit.

30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5), by failing to ensure that all systems
of collection, treatment, and disposal are properly operated and
maintained.

TEX. WATER CODE § 26.039, by failing to notify the Commission of an
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13.

14.

accidental discharge or spill within 24 hours after the occurrence.

A potential health hazard exists as a result of the Sewer Utility’s failure to
provide continuous and adequate wastewater treatment. (Exhibit A). The
Sewer Utllity is overflowing at the lift station and discharging untreated
wastewater into Toledo Bend reservolr. Immediate repairs on the Sewer
Utility are necessary to ensure abatement of the threats to human heaith and
water quality and to ensure the Sewer Utility operates in a safe manner and
meets requirements in the Texas Water Code, the Texas Health and Safety
Code, and TCEQ rules. Therefore, a temporary manager is necessary to
assume operations of the Sewer Utility to ensure wastewater Is treated and
managed in a manner that meets TCEQ rule requirements and complies with
the Texas Water Code as well as the Texas Health and Safety Code, and is
safe for human health and environmental quality.

The Sabine River Authority of Texas has agreed to serve as temporary
manager of the Sewer Utility. The Sabine River Authority ‘of Texas’ mailing
address is P.O. Box 579, Orange, Texas 77631-0579 and phone number is
(409) 746-2192. - - . '

This Order-is necessary to ensure that continuous and adequate wastewater

servicé'is provided to the Sewer Utility’s customers to effectuate the purposes
of the Texas Water Code and the Texas Health and Safety Code.

1.
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

As evidenced by Findings of Fact Nos. 1,2, and 3, Mr. O’Neill owns a retail
public utility as defined in TEX. WATER CODE § 13.002(19).

As evidenced by Finding of Fact No. 2, the Sewer Utllity is providing retail
sewer utility service as defined in Tex. Water Code § 13.002(20).

A utility cannot provide sewer utility service without first obtaining a
certificate of convenience and necessity ("CCN”) from the TCEQ. TEX. WATER
CoDE § 13.242. A utility cannot charge rates without first obtaining the
approval of the rates by the TCEQ. TEX. WATER CoDE § 13.135 and Chapter
13, Subchapter F.

Findings of Fact Nos. 4, 6, 7, and 8 show that the Sewer Utility has
abandoned operations and that the appointment of a temporary manager is
justified as defined in TEX. WATER CODE §§ 13.412(f) and 13.4132 and 30 TeX.
ADMIN. CODE § 291.142(c).

TeX. WATER CODE § 13.4132 authorizes the Commission to appoint a willing
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11.

person to temporarily manage and operate a utility if the utility has
discontinued service or abandoned operations or the provision of services or
has been or is being referred to the Attorney General for the appointment of a
receiver under TEX. WATER CODE § 13,412,

TEX. WATER CODE § 5.507 provides that the Commission may issue an
emergency order appointing a willing person to temporarily manage and
operate a utility under TeX, WATER CODE § 13.4132.

This Emergency Order may be issued without notice or hearing pursuant to
TEX. WATER CODE § 5.501(b) and 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 35.25.

TEX. WATER CODE § 5.501(c) and 30 Tex. ADMIN CODE §§ 35.12 and 291.143(a)
authorize the TCEQ Executive Director to issue this Emergeéncy Order.

TEX. WATER CODE §§ 5.501 and 5.507 and 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 291.143(a)
authorize the Executive Director to appoint a person to temporarily manage
and operate a utility that has discontinued or abandoned operations or which
is being referred to the office of the Attorney General for the appointment of a
receiver.

TEX. WATER CODE § 13.4132 provides to the temporary manager the powers
and duties necessary to ensure continued operation of the utility and the
provision of continuous and adequate services to customers including the
power and duty to read meters, bill for services, collect revenues, disburse
funds, access all system components, and request rate increases.

Notice of the emergency order, once it has been issued, is adequate if the
notice is mailed or hand delivered to the last known address-of the Utility’s
headquarters, in accordance with Tex. WATER CODE § 5.507. The last known
address of Mr. O'Nelll is set forth in Finding of Fact No. 5.

I1I.
ORDER

This Order shall be effective on the date it is executed by the TCEQ Executive
Director, August 1, 2013.

Immediately upon the effective date of this Emergency Order, Sabine River
Authority is hereby appointed to temporarily manage and operate the Sewer
Utility.

The Sabine River Authority of Texas shall serve as temporary manager until
such time as a receiver is appointed to operate the Sewer Utility by a court of
proper jurisdiction, or 180 days after the effective date of this Order, January
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17, 2014, whichever occurs first.

The Sabine River Authority of Texas Is authorized to exercise those powers
and duties necessary to ensure the continued operations of the Utility and the
provision of continuous and adequate services to customers, including the
powers and duties set forth in TEx. WATER CODE § 13.4132.

The Sabine River Authority of Texas shall give the Executive Director an
inventory of all Utility property received within sixty (60) days of the effective
date of this Order. '

The Sabine River Authority of Texas’ requirement to post financial assurance
with the TCEQ in an amount and type acceptable to the Executive Director
has been waived by the Executive Director pursuant to 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE g
291.143(c).

‘The Sabine River Authority of Texas’ compensation will-come from Utility

revenues in the amount of fifteen dollars ($ 15.00) per month per customer.

The Sabine River Authority of Texas shall report to the Executive Director on
a monthly basis in accordance with 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 291.143(h).

Pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE § 5.504, the Commission will consider whether
to affirm, modify or set asidé this Ordér at its regular Agenda meeting on
September 4, 2013; at 9:30 a.m., at TCEQ Park 35 Compliex, 12118 North I-
35, Building E, Room 201S, Austin, Texas. At the September 4, 2013,
Agenda meeting, Mr. O'Neill may request an evidentiary hearing
‘pursuant to 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 35.25(c) for the purpose of
presenting evidence and cross-examining witnesses regarding
whether to affirm, modify, or set aside this Emergency Order. An
Administrative Law Judge will be present at the Agenda to
immediately hear the matter should a hearing be requested.

The Chief Clerk shall provide a copy of this Order to each of the parties.

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

- W \ﬁ“) dﬂq/{{)
\ Richard A. Hyde, P.E/
epuw "1~ Executive Director




AFFIDAVIT OF RONALD HEBERT
STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF SABINE §

My name is Ronald Hebert. I am the Water Section Manager for the
Beaumont Regional Office of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. T am
of sound mind, capable of making this affidavit, and the facts stated in this affidavit
are within my personal knowledge and are true and correct.

On July 29, 2013, I conducted an Investigation of the Frontier Park
Wastewater Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant. During the
Investigation, it was noted that the collection system lift station had one functional
pump which was running but was not pumping sewage from the lift station. The lift
station had a remaining capacity of 2 feet before it would overflow. There was also
evidence, in the form of wet ground around the lift station, that indicated a recent
overflow of sewage from the lift station. Mr. Michael O'Neill was present at the time
of the investigation and was asked about the current status of the lift station. Mr.
O'Neill stated that only one functiofial pump was present in the lift station and that
he was checking the lift station several times daily. However, based on my
observationsy the facility was not being malntained. I Informed Mr. O'Neill of the
problem with the one pump, and hé stated he would check the pump, and that it
was probably fouled with a rag.

I next evaluated the wastewater treatment plant. I noted that the plant was
not secure in that several boards were missing from the fence surrounding the
plant and the gate was unlocked. I noted that the air blower on the plant was
running. The plant was in a state of severe disrepair with heavy corrosion on most
of the above-water metal components. The mixed liquor in the aeration basin
appeared darker than healthy mixed liquor should be and appeared thick in nature.
The clarifier was full of sludge as was the chlorine contact basin, and I observed
sludge discharging from the plant into Toledo Bend Reservoir. The -disinfection
equipment was non-functional, and a sample of the effluent showed that no
disinfection of the discharging effluent was occurring.

The discharge point from the wastewater treatment plant is very close to a
public boat ramp, which was being utilized by fisherman while the Investigation was
occurring. Effluent samples were collected of the discharging wastewater and were
sent to the TCEQ and Sabine River Authority Lab for analysis. According to Mr.
Ryan Pay, Sabine River Authority; who was present during the investigation, no
effluent samples are being collected from the wastewater treatment plant, Visual
observations of the wastewater treatment plant and sample results of the
discharging effluent show that the wastewater treatment plant is not being
operated in a manner that is protective of human health and the environment.




Ronald Hebert AN
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared
Ronald Hebert, known to me to be the person whose hame is subscribed to the
foregaing instrument and acknowledged to me that she executed the same for the
purposes and consideration herein expressed. '

Given under my hand and seal of offjce this 31st day of July, A.D., 2013.

Notary Stamp / Notary Signature

- R, JESSICA. B, FREEMAN

A %% Notary Public. Slate of Texas
P oS - My Commisslon Expires
ey Aptit 22, 2017
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PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATION

Facility Name: Frontier Park

Facility County: Sabine

Investigator: Ronald Hebert

Investigation Number:
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Investigation Date: 7/29/2013

Collection system lift
station. Note only one
functional pump. The
pump was running but was
not pumping down the lift
station. The Station had
about 2 feet of capacity
before overflowing.

S

Collection system 1ift
station inside of wooden
box. Note wet area around
lift station evident of recent
overflow.
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Open manhole just
upstream of treatment

plant. Note flow in
manhole,
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“On-site lift station just

upstream of treatment
plant. Note only one
functional pump present.
Note flow into lift station.
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Aeration basin in treatment
plant. Note that the air was
on. The mixed liquor is
dark brown and appears
thick.
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Clarifier and sawtooth
weir. Note high amount of
bulking sludge in clarifier
and on sawtooth weir. You
can also note the excessive
sludge blanket just below
the water surface. 9’
sludge blanket with
clarifier depth of 10°,
Operational standards state
that sludge blanket should
be no more than 25% of
the total clarifier depth.

Side view of clarifier and
sawtooth weir. Note high
amount of bulking sludge
and sludge carryover to
chlorine contact basin,
Flow is toward the top of
the picture







PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATION

Chlorine contact basin.
Note there was no chlorine
being added to effluent.
Note severe corrosion and
tan color of the effluent,
Effluent should be clear at
this point.

Final basin prior to
discharge to Toledo Bend
Reservoir. Note high
amount of bulking sludge.
Basin has 1.5 feet of sludge
in 2 foot basin. No sludge
should be present in the
basin, Sludge is being
discharged to Toledo Bend.
Note samples were
collected just blow v-notch
weir (arrow).
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Chlorine pump on top of
drum, Note chlorine pump
was non functional.

Bottles of Clorox around
wastewater treatment plant,







No. D-1-GV-10-001692

STATE OF TEXAS, § IN THE DISTRICT COURT
§
Plaintiff, § E o
§ g%
V. § Bh
§ TRAVIS COUNTY, TExfg-“ ?-
MICHAEL L. O'NEILL, d/b/a § e
FRONTIER PARK RESORT and § ot
MARINA, § & g
§ g
= D
Defendant. § 353" JUDICIAL DISTRI

DEFAULT JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJUNC'I‘ION

ON THIS DAY the Court mlled the above-styled case for tefal, Plamtlff State of

Texas, appeared by its attorney of record and announced ready for trial, Defendant, Michael
L. O"Neill, an indivicual \.vho docs business as Frontier Park Resort and Marina, the owner
and operator of a public water supply system (PWSS) and a wastewater treatment plant
(WWTP), although having been duly and legally .cited to appear and answer herein, failed
to ap;:;ear and answer, and wholly made default. The Court determined it had Jjurisdiction
over the subject matter and the parties ta this proceeding.  Plaintiff moved for default

Jjudgment.

The Court, having considered the pleadings, evidence, and argument, is of the opinion

that it has jurisdiction over the parties and subject matter of this case. Furthermore, the Court
is of the opinion that the State is entitled to Judgment against Defendant on the State's claim

for injunctive relief, civil penalties, atiorney’s fees, unpaid administrative penalties, and court
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costs,
THE COURT FINDS:

I The State filed its Qriginal Petition and.Apblicaﬁion for Prm-'manent Injunction
on October 4, 2010.

2. Citation was issued on October 7, 2010.

3. Defendant was properly s&lawed with eitation and a copy of the State's petition

by personal service upon Defendant on October 13, 2010,

4. Thecompleted citation was filed on December 7,2010. The citation and proof

0!.‘ service hava b@cn on file w:th the clerk DL‘ the court at least ten days, emludmg the day of
filing and today as required by Rule 107 of the Texas Rules of Civil Procedure.

5. Defendant’s last known mailing address is Michael O'Neill, RR 1, Box 1690,
Hemphill, Sabine County, Texas 75948, The State has filed a Certificate of Defendant’s Last
Known Address with the records in this cause, ;S'ee Exhibit A; Certificate of Defendant’s

Lust Known Address.

6. - Defendant is not a member of the United States military. The Statehasfiled . .

a Soldiers’ and Sailors’ Affidavit in the recc;rds of this 6atlse. See Bxhibit B, Soldiets’ and
Sailors’® Affidavit.

7. The deadline for Defendant to file an answer was November 8, 2010.
Defendant failed to file an answer, or any pleading constituting an answet, and has not

entered an appearance in thig cause, Therefore, Defendant has admitted all facts alleged in



the State’s Original Petition and Application for Permanent Injunction.

8. The administrative and civil penalties sought in the State’s Original Petition
and Application for Permanent Injunction are liquidated and proven by a written instrument
that allows the Court to calculate the penalties without the hecessity of a hearing,

9. At all times relevant to the violations in this matter, Defendant owned and
operated the a PWSS and WWTP located six miles east of Milam on Highway 21 at Toledo
Bend Reservoir, Sabine County, Texas (the facility),

FURTHER THE COURT FINDS THAT:

10, The State s entitled to judgment for oivil penalties against Defendant of not
. less than $50 nor more than $25,000 for each day that Defendant violated the Tex., Water
Code, Tex. Health and Safety Code and Texas Commission on Environmeninl Quality
(TCEQ) rules. Tex. Water Code, § 7.102, Bach day ofa cqntinuing violation is a separate
violation. Jd. The State is only seeking civil pen'alties against Defendant for the statutory
minimum of $50,00 per violation per day. Thecivil penalties for the violations are liquidated
and proven by a written instrument that allows the Court to calculate the penalties without
the necessity of a hearing,

Violation 1: Failure to Maintain Plant Operations Manual

11, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from February 13, 2007 to October
4, 2010 to compile and maintain a complete and up-to~clate plant operations manual in

violation of30 TAC § 290.42(]) and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering



Provision 2.£i. Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 290.42(1) and TCEQ Order
Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.£.1. for 1,328 days.
Vit;lggﬁon 2: Failure to Mﬂintaiu Chemieal Monito;‘ing Plan

12, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from Febniary 13, 2007 to Qetober
4, 201010 prepare and maintain an up-to-date cherical and microbiological monitoting plan
for the facility in violation 0f 30 TAC §290.121(s) and TCEQ Order Docket No, 2007-0712-
PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.b,ii. Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 290.121{a)

and TCEQ Order Docket No., 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.b.1i. for 1,328 days.

Violation 3: Failure to Provi

13.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from February 13, 2007 to October
4, 2010 to provide one meter at each residence in violation of 30 TAC § 290,44(N(4) and
TCEQ Order I)ockef Nd. 2007-07 12~PWS-E,_ Orderiﬁg Provision ih.ii. Therefore,
Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 290.44(d)(4) and TCEQ Order Docket No, 2007-0712-
PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.h.ii. for 1,328 days,

Violation 4: Failure to Dead-Fnd Main Flﬂshin Records

14.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from February 13, 2007 to October
4, 2010 to maintain records of the dates that dead-end mains were flushed for the facility and
maintainthose records for at least two years in violation of 30 TAC § 290.46(N{3)(A)iv)and
TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordm"ihg Provision 2.d.iii. Therefore,

Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 290.46(H(3)(A)(iv) and TCEQ Order Dacket No. 2007-



0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.d.il. for 1,328 days,
Violation 5: Failure to Maintafn Distribution Map

15, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from Februafy. 13, 2007 to October
4, 2010 to compile and maintain an up-to-date distribution map' in violation of 30 TAC
§ 290.46(n)(2) and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-07 [2-PWS-B, Ordering Provision 2.d.1v,
| Therefore, Defendant hag violated 30 TAC § 290.46(n)(2) and TCEQ Order Dacket No.

2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.d.iv. for 1,328 days

Yiolation 6: Failure to Inqtall Well Sealing Block

4, 2010 to install a proper sealing block around a well at the PWSS in vidlation of 30 TAC
§ 290.41(e)(3)(N) and TCEQ Order Docket No, 2007-0712-PW S-F. Ordering Provision
2.Lii, Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC §290.41(c)(3)(Nand TCEQ Order Docket
No. 2007-0712-PWS-B, Ordering Provision 2.£.iii, for 1,328 days,

Violation 7: Failure to Establish Backflow Prevention Program

7. The Court finds that the Defendant failed from February 13, 2007 to October
4, 2010 to establish an appropriate backflow prevention program for the facility in violation
of 30 TAC § 290.44(h)(1) and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering
Provision 2.h.i, Therefore, Defendant has violated 30TAC §290.44(h)(1) and TCEQ Order
Daocket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.h.1. for 1,328 days.

Violation 8: Failure to Record Chemicals Used

16 The Court ﬁnds that the Defendanl fallud from Febrmry 13 2007 10 Dctober



18.  The Caurt finds that the Defendant failed from August 20, 2009 to Dé:tober 4,
2010 to record the amount of chemicals used each weel at the facility in violation of 30 TAC
§ ,;290.46(f)(3)(A)(i)(III). Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 290.46(D(3)(AX(II)
for 410 days.

Violation 9: Failure to Reeord Volume of Water Treated

19.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from August 20, 2009 to October 4,

2010 to record the volume.of water treated each week at the facility in violation of 30 TAC

§290.46(DEYAYGIIL for 410 days,

20.  The Court finds that the Defendant faited from August 20. 2009 to October 4,
2010 to monitor and tecord the disinfectant residual concentration in thc':- distribution system
al the facility at least once évery seven days in viaiatfon of 30 TAC §290.110(c){4)(A) and
30 TAC § 29046(H)(3)B)i1).  Therefore, Defendant has viotated 30 TAC
§ 290.110¢c)(4)(A) and 30 TAC § 290.46(£)(3)(B)(iii) for 410 days.

Violation 11: Failure to Inspget Tanks

21.  The Court 'ﬁnd;s that the Defendant failed from August 20, 2009 to October 4,
2010 to inspect the ground storage and pressure tanks at the facility annually in violation of
30 TAC § 290.46(m)(1), Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC §290.46(m)(1) for 410

days.

§ 200.46(D(3)A)EII). Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC



Yiolation 12: Failure to Haye Licensed Water Works Operator

22, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from August 20, 2009 to October 4,
2010 ;[u operate the facility undey the direct supervision of an appropriately licensed water
works operator in violation of 30 TAC § 290.46(e), Therefore, Defendant has violated 30
TAC § 290,46(¢) for 410 days.
Violation 13: Failure to Calibrate Well Mater

23, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from August 20, 2009 to October 4,

2010 to calibrate the well meter at the facility-at least once every three years in violation of

30°'TAC § 290.46(s)(1) and 30 TAC § 290.41(c)(NY(3) for 410 days.

Yiolation 14: Faflure to Check Disinfectant Residual Analyzer

24,  The Coutt finds that the Defendant failed from August 20, 2009 to October 4,

2010 to check the accuracy of the disinfectant residual analyzer at least once every 30 days
in violation of 30 TAC § 290.46(s)(2)(C)(i). Therefore, Defondant has violated 30 TAC
§ 290.46(s)(2XC)(i) for 410 days.

Yiolation 15: Failure to Provide Proper Well Capacity

25.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from August 20, 2009 to October 4,
2010 to provide a well capacity of 0.6 gallons per minute {(gpm) per connection in violation
0f30 TAC § 296.45(b)(1)(B)(i) and 30 TAC §290.45(c)(1)(B)(1). Therefore, Defendant has

violated 30 TAC § 290.45(b)(1)(B)(i) and 30 TAC § 290.45(c)(1)(B)(i) for 410 days,



Violation 16: Failure to Provide Proper Tank Capagi

26, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from Pebruary 13, 2007 to October
4, 2010 to provide a pressure tank capacity of at least 20 gallons per community connection
and 10 gallons per 11on-conuﬁunity conngction in vielation of 30 TAC § 290.45(c)(1 XB)(iv)
and TCEQ Order Docket No, 2007-0712-PWS-B, Ordering Provision 2.h.iil. ‘Therefore,
Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 290.45(c)(1)(B)(iv) and TCEQ Qrder Docket No, 2007-

0712~-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2,h.iii, for 1,328 days.

YViolation 17: Failure to Proyide ain Inspection Port

P e Gourt finds that the Defendant Failed ﬁomAugust20,2009t0 October 4,

2010 to equip .the pressure. tank_with_an-lnspection--port-in—violation—o£-30-FAG -

§ 290.43(d)}(1}. Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 290,43(d)(1) for 410 days.

Yiolation 18: Failure to Pr
| 28,  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from June 3, 2008 to QOctober 4, 2010

ta provide the 2004 CCR to customers and to submit the required Certificate of Delivery to

the TCEQ in violation of 30 TAC §§ 290.271(b), 290.274(a) and 290.274(c), and TCEQ

Order Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.5, b.and c. Therefore, Defendant

has violated 30 TAC §§ 290.271(b), 290.274(a) and 290.274(c), and TCEQ Order Docket

Na. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.a, b and ¢ for 849 days.

Yiolation 19: Failure to Provide 2005 CCR

29.  The Court finds that the Defendant faited from June 3, 2008 to October 4,2010

to provide the 2005 CCR to customers and to submit the required Certificate of Delivery to

8



the TCEQ in violation of 30 TAC §§ 290.271(b), 290.274(a) and 290.274(c), and TCEQ
Order Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2 .8,bandc¢, Therefore, Defendant
has violated 30 TAC §§ 290.271(5), 290.274(a) and 290.274(c), and TCEQ Order Docket
Neo. 200;7-{)7 12-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.4, b and ¢ for 849 days,

Violatien 20; Failure to Provide 2006 CCR

30.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from June 3,2008 10 October4, 2010
to provide the 2006 CCR to customers and to submit the required Certificate of Delivery to
the TCEQ in violation of 30. TAC §§ 290.271(b), 290.2’?4(&) and 290.274(c), and TCEQ
~ORder DECKEENG. 200707 1"2"'-'9'W‘S‘:ﬁ;"ﬁ‘ﬁa‘é}ii'ﬁg"P'E&S%’i‘é‘i’dﬁﬁ'ﬁ&;’iﬁ"’éﬁa"&f'ﬁ‘i’iéiléfi;iié;_'ﬁé%éi{&aﬁ't'"' |
has violated 30 TAC §§ 290.271(b), 290.274(a) and 290.274(c), and TCEQ Order Docket
No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.a, b and ¢ for 849 days,

Yiolatton 21: Failure to Provide 20807 CCR

31, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from October 15, 2009.t0 October
4, 2010 to provide the 2007 CCR to customers and to submit the required Certificate of
Delivery to the TCEQ in violation of 30 TAC §8 290.271¢b), 290.274(a) and 290.274(c).
Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC §§290.271(b}), 290,274(n) and 290.274(c) for 354
days,

Yiolation 22; Failure to Issue Bofl Water Nofice

32, The Court finds that the Defendant failed on Jan uary 12, 201010 issue a proper
boil water notice and notify the TCEQ of the issuance of the boil water notice in violation

of 30 TAC § 290.46(q)(1). Therefore, Defendant violated 30 TAC § 290.46(q)(1) for one
9



day.
Violation 23; Failure to Yssue Boil Water Notice

33.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from July 16, 2010 until July 23,
2010 toissue a proper boil water notice and notify the TCEQ of the issuance of the boil water

notice in violation of 30 TAC § 290.46(q)(1). Therefofe, Defendant violated 30 TAC

§ 290.46(q)1) for eight days.

- 34,  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from February 13, 2007 to October

i 3016 o submit a revised Septomber 2006 DMR which reflected the correct pH data for
that reporting period in violation of 30 TAC § 305.125 and;TCEQ Order Docket No, 2007-
OO49-MM~E, Ordering Provision 2.b.ii, Therefbrc; Defendant has violated 30 TAC §
305,125 and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0049-MLM-E, Oxdelmg 'Pro.v'isibn 2.b.ii. for
1,328 days.

Violation 25: Failuve to Implement Procedures fox the Lift Stations

35, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from February 13, 2007 to October

| 4, 2010 to develop and implement operational and maintenance procedures to i)revent fuﬁarc-
discilarges from the li.ﬁ stations at the facility in Vioim‘.iﬁn of‘30 TAC § 305.125(4) and
TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0049-MLM-E, Ordering Provision 2.¢c, Therefore, Defendant
has violated 30 TAC § 305.125(4) and TCEQ Qrder Docket No. 200?-00494\?111\4-]3,

Otrdering Provision 2.c, for 1,328 days.
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Yiolation 26: Failuye to Hire Licensed Operat'gr

36.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from February 13, 2007' to October
4, 2010 to hire a licensed wastewater operator and/or compleie training and licensing
requirements to become a licensed wastewatsr aperator in violation of 30 TAC §30.33 l(b); V
Tex. Water Code §§ 26,0301 and 37,003, and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0049-MLM-E,
Ordering Provision 2.4, Tllerefore, Defendant has vielated 30 TAC § 30,33 1(b), Tex. Water
Code §§ 26.0301 and 37,003, and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0049-MLM-E, Ordering
Provision 2.d. for 1,328 days.

lentng?Fa:luretaSubmltCertlficatmn of Limitations and Monitoring

37.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from February 13, 2007 to October
4, 2(510 to submit written certification of compliance with the efflvent linllitations and
monitoring requirement specified in Permit No. WQ00114015001 in violation TCEQ Order
DocketNo, 2007~éO49aMLM-E, Ordering Provisic')ln 2.e. Therefore, Defendant has violated
Permit No. WQ00114015001 and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0049-MLM-E, Ordering
Provision 2.e. for 1,328 days,

Yiolation 28: Failure to Adjust Y'eed Rate of Chlorine

38.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from December 1 1, 2008 to Qctober
4, 2010 to adjust the feed rate of chlorine tablets to énsure that the total chlorine residual is
maintained between 1.0 and 4.0 mg/l in violation of 30 TAC § 305.125(1) and Permit No.
WQO00114015001. Therefore, Defendant has violated l30 TAC §305.125(1) and Permit No,

WQO0114015001 for 617 days.

11



Violation 29; Failure to Properly Document Effluent Flow Rate Collection

39, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from December 11, 2008 to October
4, 2010 to record the time and identity of the mdmdual who read the efﬂuent flow rate,
collected the sample and conducted the anaij/ses for the effluent total chlorine for the months
of September, October and November 2008 in violation of 30 TAC § 319.7(a) and Permit
No. WQ00114015001. Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 319,7(a) and PermitNo.
WQO0114015001 for 617 days. |
Viohtwg 30: Fajlure to Provide Duplex Pumgmg Capablility

40, The Court finds that the Dafendant fmied ﬁom Dccember 11 2008 to Octobex B
4, 2010 to provide duplex pumping capabllity at the collection lift station in violation of 30
TAC § 305,125(5) and Permit No. WQ00114015001, Thefefore, Defendant has violated 30

TAC § 305.125(5) and Permit No, QD01 14015001 for 617 days.

41,  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from December 11, 2008 to October
4, 2010 to provide high water alarm systéms at the collection system lift station and the
inﬂt.lent lift station in violation of 30 TAC § 305.125(5) and Pem:dt No. WQ00114015001.
Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 305.125(5) and Permit No, WQ00114015001
for 617 days.
Yiolation 32: Failure to Provide High Water Alarm Systems

42.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from December 11, 2008 to October

4, 2010 to provide provide noncompliance notification for effluent that deviates from the_

12



permit limitation greater than 40% in violation of 30 TAC § 305.125(1) and Permit No,
' WQOOI 14015001, Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC §305.125(1) and PermltNo
WQ00114015001 for 617 days.

Yiolation 33: Failure to Pay Administrative Pepalties

43.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed to pay $55,921.00 in administrative
penalties ordered to be paid by TCEQ Order No. 2007-0712-PWS-E (36,670.00 ordered
administrative penalties), TCEQ Order No. 2008-1103-PWS-E. (§716.00 ordered
administrative penalties), arid TCEQ Order No. 2007-0449-MLM-E ($48,535.00 ordered
adlmms,tlatwepenal ues) e B B 1 8 e e e

ATTORNEY’S KEES

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS THAT:

44.  The State is entitled to recover from Defendant its reasonable attorney’s fees,
investigative costs, and court costs incurred in prosecuting this matter. Tex, Water Code §
7.108; Tex. Gov’t Code § 402,006(c).

45, Asevldenced by the State’s affidavit, admitted by the Court, and filed with the
records in this cause, the State’s reasonable and necessaty attorney’s fees in this case are
$6,413.73. See Exhibit C, Affidavit for Attorhey’s Fees,

46.  Asevidenced by the State’s affidavit, admitied by the Court, and filed with the
records in this cause, the State’s reasonable and necessary attorney’s fees in the event that
proceedings to collect this judgment become necessary are $2,000.00, See Exhibit C,

Affidavit for Attorney’s Fees.

13



47, Asevidenced by the State’s affidavit, admitted by the Coutt, and filed with the
records of this cause, the State’s reasonable and necessary attorney’s fees in the event of an
appeal by the Defendant to the Court of Appeals are $5,000.00, See Exhibit C, Affidavit for
Attorney’s Fees.

48.  Asevidenced by the State’s affidavit, admitted by the Court, and filed with the
records of this cause, the State’s reasonable and necessary attorney’s fees in the event of an
appeal bfthe'Defendémi to the Texas Supreme Court for preparation of & petition for review
are $8,000.00. See Bxhibit C, Affidavit for Attorney’s Fees. |

49. As ewdenced by the State 8 ﬂfﬁdawt deltted by the Court and hled with the
srecords of this cause, the State’s reasonable and necessary attorney’s fees in the event that
a petition for review by the Texas Supreme Court is grated are $15,000.00, Se¢ Exhibit C,
Affidavit for Attorney’s Fees.

FURTHER THE CQURT FINDS THAT:
| OTHER

50. The Court finds that the civil penalties assessed herein are payable to-and for
the benefit of a government unit and are not compensation for actual pecuniary loss, and,
therefore, are ﬁot dischargeable under federal bankruptcy laws.

s1.  The Court further finds that the applicable judgment interest rate for the date
of this Default Judgrment as published by the Texas Office of Consumer Credit in accordance
with §304.003 of the Texas Finance Code is five perceat.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED THAT:
' 14



52, Immediately upon the date the Defendant receives this Default Judgment,
Defendant, his agents, employees, and all persons in active concert or participation with him
are hereby permanently enjoined as follows: Defendant shall ensure that the WWTP and
PWSS are operated in compli}.ancé with all the provisions of tﬁe Tex. -I-Iealth &‘Safaty Code,
the Tex, Water Code, TCEQ rules promulgated under the Tex. Health & Safety Code and the
Tex. Water Code, and TCEQ issued permits,

53.  Withinthirty (30) days after the date Defendant receives this Default Judgment,

Defendant, his agents, employees, and all persons in active concert or participation with him

arc hereby permanently enjoined os follows:

A.  Defendant shall compile and maintain a complete and up-fo-date plant
operations manual in aceordance with 30 TAC § 290.42()) and TCEQ
Ordet Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E.

B.  Defendant shall prepare and maintainr an up;to—data 6hemica1 and
microbiological monitoring plan in accordance with 30 TAC
§ 290.121(a) and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E.

C.  Defendant shall provide one meter per residence in accordance with 30
TAC § 290.44(d)(4) and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E,

D.  Defendant shall raintain records of the dates that dead-end mains were
flushed and maintain recards of those dates for at least 2 years in
accordance with 30 TAC § 290.46(H(3)(A)(iv) and TCEQ Order

Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E.
15



K,

Defendant shall compile and maintain an up-to-date distribution map
in accordance with 30 TAC § 290.46(n)(2) and TCEQ Order Docket
No. 2007-0712-PWS-E,

Defendant shall install a proper sealing blo-ck around all wells at the
PWSS in accordance with 30 TAC § 290.41(c)(3)(7) and TCEQ Order
Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E.

Defendant shall establish an appropriate backflow prevention program

in accordance with 30 TAC § 290.44(h)(1) and TCEQ Order Docket

TR WS-E e e e e et e

Defendant shall record the amount of chemical used each weel in

“accordance with 30 TAC § 290.46(N(3(ANDID).

Defendant shall record the volume of water treated each week in
accordance with 30 TAC § 200.46(E)(3)A)HNIID).

Defendant shall monitor and record the disinfectant residual
concentration in the distribution system at least once every seven days
in accordance with 30 TAC § 290.110(c)(4)(A) and 30 TAC §
290.46(£)(3NB)(ii).

Defendant shall ingpect the system's ground storage and pressure tanks |
annually in accordance with 30 TAC § 290.46(m)(1).

Defendant shall operate the public water sys‘tem under the direct

supervision of an appropriately licensed water works operator in

16



accordance with 30 TAC § 290.46(c).

Defendant shall calibrate all well meters in accordance with 30 TAC
§ 290.46(s)(1) and 30 TAC § 290.41(c)(3)N) and continue to do so
every three years.

Defendant shall check the acouracy of'the diginfectant residual analyzer
at least once every 30 days in accordance with 30 TAC
§ 290.46(s)(2)(CY(1). |

Deflendant shall provide a well capacity of 0.6 gallons per minute (gpn)

 perconnection in accordance with 30 TAC § 200.45(b)(1)(B)([) and 30

TAC § 290.45(c)(1)(BX1).

Defendant shall provide a pressure tank capacity of at least 20 gallons
per community connection and 10 gallons per | noen~comnunity
connection in accordance with 30 TAC § 290.45(c)}1)}B)iv) and
TCEQ Order Docket No, 2007-0712-PWS-E,

Defendant shall equip the pressure tank with an ingpection port in
accordance with 30 TAC § 290.43(d)(1).

Defendant shall provide annual Consumer Confidence Reporls to
custormers and submit required Certificates of Delivery to the TCEQ in
accordance with 30 TAC § 290.271(b), 30 TAC § 290.274(a), 30 TAC
§ 290.274(c).

Defendant shall issue proper boil water notices and notify the TCEQ of

17



Ithc‘ issuance of any boil water notices in accordance with 30 TAC
§ 290.46(q)(L).

Defendant shall submif the September' 2006 Discharge Monitoring
Report (DMR) that includes the cosrect pH data for that reporting
period in accordance with 30 TAC § 305,125 and TCEQ Default Order
Docket No. 2007-0449-MLM-E, |

' Deferdant shall develop and implérﬁent operational and maintenance
p_roceduresto prevent future discharges from the lift stations in
" peoordanse with 30 TAC § 305.125(4), Tox, Water Code § 26.121 and
TCEQ Default Order Docket No. 2007-0449-MLM-E.

Defendant shall-hire a licensed operator and/or complete training to
become a licensed wastewater operator in accordance with 30 TAC
§ 30,331(b), Tex. Water Code §§ 26,0301 and 37.003, and TCEQ
Default Order Docket No. 2007-0449-MLM-E.

Defendant shall submit written certification of compliance with the
effluent limitations and monitoring requirements specified in Water
Quality Permit No, WQU0014015-00 and required under TCEQ Default
Order Docket No, 2007-0449-MLM-E.

Defendant shali adjust the feed rate of chlorine tablets to ensure that the
total chiorine fesidual is maintained between 1.0 and 4.0 mg/l, and

stbmit one month’s logs that include total chiorine residual results in

18



BB,

cotnpliance with effluent limitations and monitoring requirements, as
required by 30 TAC § 305.125(1) and TCEQ Défault Order Docket No,
2007-0449-MLM-E.

Defendgnt ghall submit one month’s 0pe_rations ngs that include sample ‘_
collection and analyses, and effluent flow reading results, and shall
maintain all operations logs in accordance with 30 TAC § 3 19.7(5) and
Permit No, WQ00114015001,

Defendant shall ensure that the collection system lift station has duplex

~ pumping capacity at all times and that the il stations serving the

system are fully operational at all times, in accordance with 30 TAC
§ 305.125(5) and Permit No. WQ00114015001.

Defendant shall install audio-visual high level elarms on all lift stations
serving the wastewater treatrent plant and ensure that all such audio-
visual lﬁgﬁ level alarms are propez"ly maintained and p-roperly. |
functioning at all times, in accordance with 30 TAC § 305,125(5) and
Permit No. WQ00114015001,

Defendant shall develop and implement a Standard Operating
Procedure (SOP) for non-compliance reporting for effluent violations
that deviate by 'more than 40% from the permitted offluent limitation
and submit a copy of the SOP to TCEQ Region 10 office in accordance

with 30 TAC § 305.125(1) and Permit No, WQ00114015001,

19



54,  Defendantshall submit areport within 60 days of the issuance of the permanent
injunction that documents that compHance with the above permanent injunctive provisions
at the PWSS and WWTP. The report must be supported with photographs, logs and other
documentation, and must be sent to the attention of David L, Green, Assistant Attorney
General, Environmental Protection and Administrative Law Division, P.O, Box 12548,
Austin, TX 78711-2548.

55.  TheDefendant shall providethe TCEQ éccess {oPWSS and WWTP to perform
investigations and evaluations,

56.  The Clerk of this Court shall issue a Permanent Injunction against Defendant,

~ and his agents, employces, and all persons in active concert or participation with Defendant,

as set forth above.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED THAT:

57.  Defendant, is liable to the State'for'-a civil penalty of ONE MILLION TWO
HUNDRED EIGHTY-ONE THOUSAND FIFTY DOLLARS AND NO CENTS
($1,281,050.00) for violations of the Tex, Health & Sufety Code, the Tex. Water Code,
TCEQ rules, and Permits and Orders issued by the TCEQ.

58. ‘The State, therefore, shall have judgment against, in the amount of ONE
MILLION TWO HUNDRED EIGHTY-ONE THOUSAND FIFTY DOLLARS AND Nd
CENTS ($1,281,050.00), which constitutes Paragraphs 11 through 42, for 25,621 days of
violations of the Tex. Health & Safety Code, the Tex. Water Code, TCEQ rules, and Permits

and Orders issued by the TCEQ at $50.00 per day.
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39, Defendant, is liable to the State for administrative penalties of FIFTY-FIVE
THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED TWENTY-ONE DOLLARS AND NO CENTS
($55,921.00) for amounts owned under TCEQ Order No. 2007-0712-PWS-E ($6,670.00
ordered administrative penalties), TCEQ Order No. 2008-1103-PWS-E ($716.00 ordered
adminisirative penalties), and TCEQ Order No. 2007-0449-MLM-E ($48,535.00 ordered
administrative penalties).

60.  The State, therefore, shall have judgment against Defendant, for administrative
penalties of FIFTY-FIVE THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED TWENTY-ONE DOLLARS
~ AND NO CENTS ($55,921.00) for the unpaid and owing administrative penalties. -

¢l.  The State shall alsb have judgment against Defendant, for its attorney’s fees
in the amount of TWENTY-SIX THCOUSAND NINE HUNDRED SEVENTY-TWOQ
DOLLARS AND FIFTY CENTS ($26,972.50).

62.  Should Defendant fail o make a timely payment of the amounts due and owing
under this Default Judgment, the State shall also have judgment against the Defendant for
the State’s necessary and reasonable attorney’s fees for prdceedings to collect judgment in
this ease in the amount of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($2,000.00).

63, Should Defendant appeal this Default Judgment to the Court of ‘Appeals, the
State shall also have judgment against the appealing Defendant for the State’s neceséary and -
reasonable attorney’s fees in the amount of FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO
CENTS ($5,000.00).

64.  Should Defendant appeal this Default Judgment to the Texas Supreme Court,



- the State shall also have judgment against the appealing Defendant for the State's necessary
and ressonable attorney’s fees to prepare a petition for review in the amount of EIGI—IT'
- THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO CENTS (§8,000.00).

e 65,  Should Defendant appeal this Default Judgment to the Texas Supreme Court,
and should a petition for review be aranted by the Texas Supreme Coutt, the State shalf also
have judgment agajnst Defendant for the State’s necessary and reasonable atiorney’s fees in
the amount of FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($15,000.00),

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED THAT:

66, Defendant is ordered to pay all costs of court incurred through the date of this
Default Judgment and those court costs which may be incutted to collect this Default
Judgment if necessaty. '

67. Defendant shall pay post-judgment intérest on all amounts in this cause and
continually thereafter at the legal rate of five percént from the date of this Default J ﬁdgment
until paid in full, for all of which execution shall issue.

68.  Defendant shall pay all amounts awarded in this Default Judgment within 30
days of the entry of this Default J udgmént.

69.  Payment for all amounts awarded in this Default Judgment shall be miade by
certified check or money order made payable to the State of Texas and shall bear the
identifying number “A.G. # 093142115 Checks Shaﬁ be delivered to Division Chief,
Envirenmental Protection and Administrative Law Division, Office ofthe Attorney General,

P.O, Box 12548, Austin, Texas 78711-2548.
22



IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED THAT:

70, The effective date of this Default Judgment is the date it is signed by the Judge
Prestding,

71..  Execution shall issue for all monies awarded herein.

72, The State of Texas is allowed such writs and processés as may be necessary in
the enforcement and collection of this Default Judgment,

73, Allreliefnot expressly herein granted is denied. This is a final judgment, This
Defavlt Judgment finatly dispéses, without reservation, of all partics and all claims brought

orthat reasonably could have been brought.

SIGNED on Decemberéf_ _Q_, 2010.

JUDGEARESIDING = -

ENTRY REQUESTED BY:

GREG ABBOTT
Attorney Genernl of Texas

DANIEL T. HODGE
First Assistant Attorney General

BILL COBB
Deputy Attorney General for Civil Litigation

BARBARA B. DEANE
Chief, Environmental Prolection and



Administrative Law Division

DAVID PREISTER
Chief, Environmental Protection Section

(0.

DAVID L. GREEN

State Bar No. 24037776
Assistant Attorney General
Environmental Protection and
Administrative Law Division
P.0. Box 12548, Capitol Station
Austin, Texas 78711-2548

Tel: (512) 475-3205

ATTORNEYS FOR THE STATE OF TEXAS
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, ‘ . Amalia Rodrigusz-Mendoza -
" AP P i
STATE OF TIUXAS, § IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF
. §
Plaintift, §
§ . .
V. § TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
MICHAEL L, O’NEILL, d/b/a §
FRONTIER PARK RESORT and § .
MARINA, § o : Ce -
' § . 353*" JUDICIAL DISTRICT
Defendant. 8 )
CERTQI!*{I‘ CATEL OF LAST Kﬂ_ OWN gmgg]nsg

Pursuant to Texas Ru:le of Civil lPrﬁcedm.'e 239a, fhe Stﬁ_te of Texas, Plalntiff
in,the above-entitled and numbered cause, cortifics that tﬁm last known addrcss- of Michae]
£,. O'Neill in the above-entitled and numbered cavse against whom default judgment will be
réndered, is as follows:

-7 viichael L. O'Neill

YRR 1; Box 1690 -
" Hemphill, Sabine County, Texas 75948

Respéétfully submitted,

e GREG ABBOTT
Attorney General of Texas

. DANIEL T. HODGE
Tirst Assistant Attorney General
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10 November 18 A10:01
Amalia Rodrigusz-Mendoza
CAUSENO, D-1-GV-10-001692 oot
I NO, D-1-GV-10- ravis. Dig
1 ? D=4-GV-10-001692
STATE OF TRHAS, § IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF
§
Plaintift, §
&
Y, § TRAYIS COUNTY, TEXAS
' , 8
MICHAEL L, O'NEILL, d/b/a §
FRONTIER PARK RESORT nnd §
- MARINA, § - 5
8 C 353 YUDICIAL DISTRICT
§ ,

Defendant,

PLAINTIFIS SOLDIERS” & SAILORS! AFFIDAVIT

Before me, the undersigned notary, on this day personally appear;ed Wanda
Pittran, a person whose identity is known to.me. Afier I administered an oath to her, upon her
oath she said: . |

1 Thereby certify thatT m;n personally acquaintslcl wiﬂ1 the facts stated hereinand that
the foregoing is true and correct, My name Is Wanda Pitiman, and1ama iegal assistant working
under the direction of David Green, the Assistant Attorney General representing ﬂw State in this
matter, State of Texas v, Michael L. O'Neill, d/b/a Frontler Park Resortand Marina, Cause No.
D-1-GY-10-001692, in the 353’fj District Court of Travis County, Texas, and am over the age
of sighteen and competent to make this affidavit,

2, On November 17, 2010, I contacted the United States Department of Defense
Manpower Dﬁta Cenler and requested a search of its information data banks. 1 provided the
Depattment of Defense Manpower Data Center with the Social Scourity Number for Defendant
Michael L, O'Neill. The results of that search indicate that Defendant Michael L. O"Neill is

currently not on active military duty as to all branches of the United States military, 11'and




correct copy of the search resulls is attached hereto ag Bxhibit “A”.

WANDA PITTMAN
Legal Assistant

SWORN TO and SUBSCRIBED before me by Wanda Pittman on Novembor

(77 2010,
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artment of Defense Manpower Data Center Noy-17-2010 13:08:57

iy ¥4 Military Statns Report
gt Pursuant 1o the Service Members Civil Rolief Act

Pirst/Middle| Begin Date | Active Duty Status | Active Duty End Date i‘;;‘;:‘c*;

ONEILL MICHAEL |Based on the information you have fornished, the DMDC does not possess
“ L. any Information indicating the individual status,

{Jpon searching the information data banks of the Department of Defense Manpowor Data Contet, based
on the information that you provided, the abave is the curreat statug of the individual ag 1o all branches

of the Uniformed Services (Atmy, Navy, Marine Corps, Adt Force, NOAA, Public Health, and Coust
Guard), ' .

Mary M, Snavely-Dixon, Director

- Department of Defonse - Manpower Data Center
1600 Wilson Blvd,, Suite 400

Atlinglon, VA 22209-25393

The Defense Manpower Data Center (DMDC) s un organization of the Depariment of Defense that
mnintaing the Defense Enrollment and Bligibility Reporting System (DEERS) database which is the
offioial source of data on eligibility for military medical care and other eligibility sysiems.

The Dol? strongly supports the enforcement of the Service Mambers Civil Retief Act (50 USC App. §§
/501 et geq, a8 amended) (SCRA) (formerly known as the Soldiets' and Sailors’ Civil Rellef Aot of 1940).

DMDC has issued hundreds of thousands of "does not possess any Information indicating that the

individual Is currently on active duty" responses, and hag experienced @ small error rate. In the event the

individual referenced ubave, ot any family member, fviend, or representative assels in any manner that

the indivicdual is on etive duty, or s otherwise entitled fo the protections of the SCRA, you are strongly

encouraged to abtain further ver{fication of the person’s status by contacting that person's Service via the
" elefenselink.mil" URL mtwiwm4®f611se1igtg,gﬁlifggmi§LP__C_Q2§LMml_. If you have avidence the
person {s on active duty and you fail to obtain this additional Service verification, punitive provisions of
the SCRA. may be invoked agalnst you, See 50 USC App. §321 (c).

I£you obtain additional informetion about the person (e.z., an S8N, improved accuracy of DOB, a

middle nnme), you can submit your request again at this Web stle and we will provide a now certificate
for that quory, ' ,

‘Phis response reflects active duty séatus ncluding date the {ndividual was last on active duty, If it was

wiikin the preveding 367 days. For historleal information, please contact the Service SCRA polnts-of-
contact,

hitps:/Awww.dmde,osd mil/appi/scrafpopreport.do 11/1772010Q
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More lnfarmation on "Active Duty Sintus"

Active duty status as reported in this certificale is defined in necordance with 10 USC § 101(d)} D) fora
poriod of move than 30 consecutive days, In the case of & member of the National Guard, includes
service under a call to active service nuthorized by the President or the Secretary of Defense for a period
of more than 30 consecutive days under 32 USC § 502(f) for purposes of responding to a nationnl
emergency declared by the President and supported by Federal funds. All Active Guard Reserve (AGR)
members must be assigned against an authorized mabilization position in the unit they sippord, This
includes Navy TARs, Matine Corps ARs and Coast Guard RPAs, Actlve Duty status also applies to a
Uniformed Service member who is an aétive duty commissioned officer of the U8, Public Health
Service or the National Ooeanio and Atmospherip Administration (NOAA Commissioned Corps) for a
period of more than 30 cousecutive days,

Coverage Under the SCRA Is.Brouder It Svme Cases , )
Coverage under the SCRA. Is broador in some cases and includes some categories of persons on active
duty for purposes of the SCRA who would not be reported s on Active Duty under this certificate.

' Many times orders are emended to extend the period of active duty, which would extend SCRA
protections, Persons seeking to rely on this websits certification should cheek to make sure the orders on
which SCRA protections are based have not been amended to extend the Inolusive dates oF service.

" Furlisricrs, $on6 protsctiois 6 1H8 SCRA. ey sktehd 16 Peisons Who Tiave 1661ved bideis 1o repar ™

for active duty or to be inducted, but who have not actually begun active duty or actually reported for
Induction, Tho Last Date on Aotive Duty eniry is important because n number of protections of SCRA
extend beyond the last dates of active duty,

Those who wonld rely on this certificate are urged to seek qualified legal counsel to ensure that all rights
puaranieed to Service members under ihe SCRA dve protecied,

WARNING: This certificate wes provided based on a name and SSN provided by the requester,

Providing an erroneons name or SSN will cause an erroneouns certificate to be provided.
Report ID:UBOKGEGEC?2 '

hitps:/fwww.dmde,oad,milfappi/sera/popreport.do 1I/17/2010



Filed '

10 November 30 P2:56
Armnalia Rodriguez-Mandoza
Digtrict Clerk

Travls District
No. D-1-GV-10-001692 D-1-GV-10-001662
STATE OF TEXAS, § IN THE DISTRICT COURT
§
Plaintiff, §
§
\ §
§ TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
MICHAEL L, O°NEILL, d/b/a §
-~ FRONTIER PARK RESOR’I‘ and §
MARINA, §
§
§ 353" J'UDIC[AL DISTRICT

Defendant,
API‘IDAWT FOR AT’I'ORNDY’S FELS
' BEFORE Ml. 1he undmmgned Etuihouty, an ﬂus day pEISOFl’lll‘_‘/ appcared D;wic]m |
Greer, whose identity is Imown to me. After i admlmstered an cmth to him, upon 'ms (mth
he said:

. Mynameis David Green and [ am an Assistant Attorney. General representing
the State ﬁf Texus In tﬁé abovercaptionedrmatter‘. I mﬁ caﬁﬁble of making this affidavit. The
Facts stated in this affidavit are within my personal knowledge and are true and correct.

2. 1 am a licensed attorney in the State of Texas ana have been licensed since
Novernber 6, 2002,

3. 1 am generally i'hn1ili'=u" with the value of services of an attorney of my
gxperience, reputatic;n, and abitity in Travis County and correspondingly value nty time at
$225.00 per hour, which I believe to be 4 modest and rensoneble rate, The rate for the legal

nssistants is $85.00 per hour, which I believe to be a modest and reasonable rate.

-STATE'S g
E xmhrrﬁgﬂ




4, Ispent 115,25 hours working on this case. These hours comprised fle review,
legat research, drafting of pleadings, and conferring with agency personnel,

5, The amount of time for legal assistant services performed Wanda Pittman, a
legal assistant employed by the Environmenta) Protection and Administrative Law Divisio.n
of the Office of the Attdmey Géneral, warkirig on the case tbtals-l?..-.zs hours,

6. 1 consequently requeat that the court award attorney’s fees in the amount of
$26,972.50, which I believe to be a modest and reasonable fee, These fees were reasonable
and necessary for the services performed,

7. Inthecventthatproceedings to collect judgment in this case become necessary,
I believe that additional attorney*s fees in the amount of $2,000.00 would be a rensonable
amount, 1n the event af an appeal of this judgment {o the Court of Appeals, T believe that
additional attorney’s fees in the mmount of $5,000.00 would be a reasanable amount. In the
event of a pelition for review before the Texas Supreme Court by the Defendant of this
Judgment, I believe that additional attorney’s fees in the amount of $8,000.00 would be a
reasonable amount. And, in the event that the Texas Supreme Court -should_ grﬁm review of
the petition by the Defendant of this judgment, I believe that additional attorey’s fees in the

amount of $15,000,00 would be a reasonable amount. I therefore request that the Court

award attorney's fees in these amounts, which I believe to be modest and reasonable.

@&@Zk —

DAVID GREEN

2



Assistant Aﬁ‘omey Genetal
State Bar No, 24037776

On this day personally eppeared DAVID GREEN, known to me to be the person
whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instriment, and afler being duly sworn,
acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein
expressed, S

| | g pt-
Given under my hand and seal of office on Novamber 5 0 , 2010,

(Seal) )
| ﬂ/_’tﬁ.ﬁtwié&w@ﬂ ~
- »u;.,:"'" "BREGORIA A, BANIIA Notary Pulilic in and for the State of Texas

¢L .. NoteryPubtle ... 4. ...
bF WTATE OF TEXAY
“ Commlsston Exp, 07M-2842

- . :Natary without Bond -

"My comunission expiress {12317 23 D




IN THE MATTER OF 8 BEFORE THE
AN ENFORCEMENT ACTION 8
CONCERNING MICHAEL LANTZ §
O'NEILL D/B/A FRONTIER PARK 8 TEXAS COMMISSION ON
RESORT AND MARINA; § '
' RN101278034 §
8 ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

ORDER MODIFYING EMERGENCY ORDER

DOCKET NO. 2013-1405-UCR-E

On September 4, 2013, the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
("TCEQ" or "Commission”) considered whether to affirm, modify, or set aside an
Emergency Order in the matter regarding Michael Lantz O'Neill d/b/a Frontier Park
Resort and Marina ("Mr. O'Neill”), The Emergency Order was issued by the
Executive Director without a hearing on August 1, 2013. The Emergency Order and
the notice of the September 4, 2013, agenda hearing to affirm, modify, or set aside
the Emergency Order were sent by certified mail return receipt requested, and sent
by first class mail, postage prepaid to the last known address of Mr. O'Neill on
August 6, 2013. The Emergency Order was also hand delivered to Mr. O'Neill on
August 6, 2013. The Commission finds that the Executive Director appropriately
issued the Emergency Order and that the requirements for an emergency order
found in Chapters 5 and 13 of the Texas Water Code have been satisfied.

THEREFORE, THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
ORDERS THAT:

The August 1, 2013, Emergency Order, attached hereto as Exhibit A and
incorporated into this Order by reference, is affirmed with the following
modifications:

1. In order to cite to the correct jurisdictional authority, the first paragraph shall
be changed to replace "On August 1, 2013, the Executive Director of the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (the "Commission” or “TCEQ")
issued this Emergency Order pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE chs. 5 and 13 and
TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ch. 341 and 361, and 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE chs. 35,
291 and 305.” with “On August 1, 2013, the Executive Director of the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality (the "Commission” or “TCEQ") issued
this Emergency Order pursuant to TEx. WATER CODE chs. 5, 13, and 26, TEX. .
HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ch. 341, and 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE chs. 35, 291 and
305.” '

2. In order to correct a typographical error, Findings of Fact, Paragraph 11.d.
shall be changed to replace “30 TeEX. ADMIN, CODE § 305,125(1) and Permit
No. WQ00114015001, failing to adjust the feed rate of chlorine tablets to
ensure that the total chlorine residual is maintained between 1.0 and 4.0
mg/L in violation of. (Default Judgment Violation No. 28.)" with “30 Tex. -





ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(1) and Permit No. WQ00114015001, by failing to
adjust the feed rate of chlorine tablets to ensure that the total chlorine
residual is maintained between 1.0 and 4.0 mg/L. (Default Judgment Violation
No. 28.)"

3. In order to correct a typographical error, Findings of Fact, Paragraph 11.e,
shall be changed to replace “30 TEx. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5) and Permit
No. WQ00114015001, failing to provide duplex pumping capability at the
collection lift station. (Default Judgment Violation No. 30.)” with "30 TEeX.
ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5) and Permit No. WQ00114015001, by failing to
provide duplex pumping capability at the collection lift station. (Default
Judgment Violation No. 30.)”

4, In order to correct a typographical error, Findings of Fact, Paragraph 11.f.
shall be changed to replace “30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5) and Permit
No. WQ00114015001, failing to provide high water alarm systems at the

- collection lift station and the influent lift station. (Default Judgment Violation

No. 31.)” with 30 Tex. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5) and Permit No.
WQ00114015001, by failing to provide high water alarm systems at the
collection lift station and the influent lift station. (Default Judgment Violation
No. 31.)”

5. In order to correct a typographical error, Conclusions of Law, Paragraph 4
shall be changed to replace “Findings of Fact Nos. 4, 6, 7, and 8 show that
the Sewer Utility has abandoned operations and that the appointment of a
temporary manager is justified as defined in TEX. WATER CODE §§ 13.412(f)
and 13.4132 and 30 Tex. ADMIN. CODE § 291.142(c).” with “Findings of Fact
Nos. 4 and 6 through 12 show that the Sewer Utility has abandoned
operations and that the appointment of a temporary manager is justified as
defined in TEX. WATER CODE §§ 13.412(f) and 13.4132 and 30 TEX. ADMIN.
CODE § 291.142(c).”

6. In order to correct typographical errors, Conclusions of Law, Paragraph 11
- and Order, Paragraphs 4, 5, and 7, shall be changed to replace “Utility” with
“Sewer Utility.” ' g
7. In order to correct a typographica| error, Order, Pakagra‘ph No. 3 shall be

changed to replace “January 17, 2014” with “January 28, 2014.”

TEXAS COMMISSION- ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

For the Commission





Exhibit A











TCEQ DOCKET NO. 2013-1405-UCR-E

IN THE MATTER OF § BEFORE THE
AN ENFORCEMENT ACTION AGAINST §
MICHAEL LANTZ O'NEILL D/B/A §
FRONTIER PARK RESORT AND § TEXAS COMMISSION ON
MARINA; §
RN101278034 §
: § ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

EMERGENCY ORDER
APPOINTING A TEMPORARY MANAGER
" OF A WASTEWATER UTILITY

On August 1, 2013, the Executive Director of the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (the “"Commission” or “TCEQ") issued this Emergency Order
pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE chs. 5, -and-13,_and 26, TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ch.
341-ane-36%, and 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE chs. 35, 291 and 305. The party made
subject to this order is Michael Lantz O’Neill d/b/a Frontier Park Resort & Marina
(“*Mr. O'Neill").

I.
FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Mr. O’Neill owns a wastewater system located 6 miles east of Milam in Carrice
Creek, Sabine County, Texas (the “Sewer Utility”).

2. The Sewer Utility provides wastewater treatment service to approximately 38
full-time residences as well as rental units, a store, and a restaurant. Mr.
O’Neill charges each residence $55.66 per month for water, wastewater, and
trash services. As such, the Sewer Utility is a sewer utility as defined in 30
TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 291.3(52).

3. The Sewer Utility’s wastewater permit, TCEQ Permit No. WQ00114015001,
expired on November 1, 2010. The Sewer Utility does not have a current
wastewater discharge permit, and the Sewer Utility has never had a
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity.

4, The TCEQ alleges that the Sewer Utility failed to provide appropriate
wastewater treatment so that a potential health hazard has resulted and
failed to adequately maintain facilities or to provide sufficient facilities
resulting in potential health hazards, extended outages, or repeated
interruptions. (“Exhibits A and B").





Michael Lantz O’Neill d/b/a Frontier Park Resort and Marina
Docket No. 2013-1405-UCR-E

Page 2

10.

11.

Commission records show that the mailing address for Mr. O’Neill is 360
Frontier Drive, Hemphiil, Texas 75948.

No other wastewater services are available to the more than 60 people who
are served by the Sewer Utility.

During an inspection of the Sewer Utility conducted on August 29, 2009, a
Beaumont Regional investigator documented that Mr. O’Neill violated
numerous requirements. The case was referred to the Office of Attorney
General on March 17, 2010. On December 20, 2010, the 353™ Judicial District
Court in Travis County issued a Default Judgment and Permanent Injunction
("Default Judgment”) against Mr. O’Neill. The violations are listed in the
Default Judgment attached as Exhibit C.

On February 28, 2011, a TCEQ Beaumont Regional investigator documented
that Mr. O’Neill was not in compliance with the Default Judgment.

On April 16, 2013, the TCEQ referred the case back to the Office of Attorney
General to pursue contempt and abstract of judgment for the Default
Judgment.

On May 30, 2013, a TCEQ Beaumont Regional investigator documented that
the Sewer Utility was continuing to discharge untreated wastewater into
Toledo Bend Reservoir. Specifically, the water level in the chlorine contact -
chamber was approximately 2 inches above the crest of the 90-degree v-
notch weir, with an estimated flow of 0.018 million gallons per day. Samples
taken in the chlorine contact chamber showed that the total chlorine residual
concentration was 0.01 mg/L; the pH was 7.42 SU; the dissolved oxygen
concentration was 6.09 mg/L; and fecal coliform was 50,000 colonies per 100
mL.

On July 29, 2013, a TCEQ Beaumont Regional investigator documented that
the Sewer Utility was continuing to discharge untreated wastewater into
Toledo Bend Reservoir and that the facility was failing to provide appropriate
wastewater treatment and failing to adequately maintain facilities resulting in
potential health hazards. Exhibits A and B. Specifically, the lift station pump
was running but was not pumping any wastewater out of the lift station.
Exhibits A and B. The lift station had approximately 2 feet of capacity before
overflowing. Exhibits A and B. Wet areas around the lift station and down
slope of the lift station indicated a recent overflow. Exhibits A and B.
Additionally, the clarifier contained high amounts of bulking sludge and an
excessive sludge blanket. Exhibits A and B. The clarifier has a depth of 10
inches, and the sludge blanket was 9 inches deep. Exhibits A and B. Chlorine
was not being added to the effluent, and the chlorine contact basin had
sustained severe corrosion. Exhibits A and B. The effluent at the Sewer Utility
was dark brown and thick. Exhibits A and B. The final basin contained bulking
sludge, which was being discharged into Toledo Bend reservoir. Exhibits A and
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B. Samples were taken just below the v-notch weir at the point of discharge.
Exhibits A and B. Finally, the chlorine pump was not functional. Exhibits A and
B. The following violations were documented:

a. 30 Tex. ADMIN, CoDE § 305.125 and TCEQ Default Order, Docket No.
2007-0449-MLM-E, Ordering Provision No. 2.b.ii., by failing to submit a
revised September 2006 Discharge Monitoring Report ("DMR") that
reflected the correct pH data for that reporting period. (Default
Judgment Violation No. 24.) A review of the integrated Compliance
Information System showed that the data had not been submitted.

b. 30 TeX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(4) and TCEQ Default Order, Docket No.
2007-0049-MLM-E, Ordering Provision No. 2.c., by failing to develop
and implement operational and maintenance procedures to prevent
future discharges from the lift stations at the Sewer Utility. (Default
Judgment Violation No. 25.)

C. 30 TeX. ADMIN. CoDE § 30.331(b), TeX. WATER CODE §§ 26.0301 and
37.003, and TCEQ Default Order, Docket No. 2007-0449-MLM-E,
Ordering Provision No. 2.d., by failing to hire a licensed wastewater
operator and/or complete training and licensing requirements to
become a licensed wastewater operator. (Default Judgment Violation
No. 26.)

d. 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(1) and Permit No. WQ00114015001, by |
failing to adjust the feed rate of chlorine tablets to ensure that the total
chlorine residual is maintained between 1.0 and 4.0 mg/L-in-vielation-
of. (Default Judgment Violation No. 28.)

e. 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5) and Permit No. WQ00114015001, by |
failing to provide duplex pumping capability at the collection lift station.
(Default Judgment Violation No. 30.)

f. 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5) and Permit No. WQ00114015001, by |
failing to provide high water alarm systems at the collection lift station
and the influent lift station. (Default Judgment Violation No. 31.)

g. TEX. WATER CODE § 26.121(a)(1), by failing to have a wastewater
discharge permit.

h. 30 TeX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5), by failing to ensure that all systems
of collection, treatment, and disposal are properly operated and
maintained.

i TEX. WATER CODE § 26.039, by failing to notify the Commission of an
accidental discharge or spill within 24 hours after the occurrence.
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12.

13.

14,

A potential health hazard exists as a result of the Sewer Utility’s failure to
provide continuous and adequate wastewater treatment. (Exhibit A). The
Sewer Utility is overflowing at the lift station and discharging untreated
wastewater into Toledo Bend reservoir. Immediate repairs on the Sewer
Utility are necessary to ensure abatement of the threats to human health and
water quality and to ensure the Sewer Utility operates in a safe manner and
meets requirements in the Texas Water Code, the Texas Health and Safety
Code, and TCEQ rules. Therefore, a temporary manager is necessary to
assume operations of the Sewer Utility to ensure wastewater is treated and
managed in a manner that meets TCEQ rule requirements and complies with
the Texas Water Code as well as the Texas Health and Safety Code, and is
safe for human health and environmental quality.

The Sabine River Authority of Texas has agreed to serve as temporary
manager of the Sewer Utility. The Sabine River Authority of Texas’ mailing
address is P.O. Box 579, Orange, Texas 77631-0579 and phone number is
(409) 746-2192.

This Order is necessary to ensure that continuous and adequate wastewater
service is provided to the Sewer Utility’s customers to effectuate the purposes
of the Texas Water Code and the Texas Health and Safety Code.

II.
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

As evidenced by Findings of Fact Nos. 1, 2, and 3, Mr. O’Neill owns a retalil
public utility as defined in TEX. WATER CODE § 13.002(19).

As evidenced by Finding of Fact No. 2, the Sewer Utility is providing retail
sewer utility service as defined in Tex. Water Code § 13.002(20).

A utility cannot provide sewer utility service without first obtaining a
certificate of convenience and necessity ("CCN”) from the TCEQ. TEX. WATER
CODE § 13.242. A utility cannot charge rates without first obtaining the
approval of the rates by the TCEQ. TEX. WATER CODE § 13.135 and Chapter
13, Subchapter F. '

Findings of Fact Nos. 4_and 6 through 12+6—7—=and-8 show that the Sewer
Utility has abandoned operations and that the appointment of a temporary
manager is justified as defined in TEX. WATER CODE §§ 13.412(f) and 13.4132
and 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 291.142(c).

TEX. WATER CODE § 13.4132 authorizes the Commission to appoint a willing
person to temporarily manage and operate a utility if the utility has
discontinued service or abandoned operations or the provision of services or
has been or is being referred to the Attorney General for the appointment of a
receiver under TEX. WATER CODE § 13.412.
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6. TEX. WATER CODE § 5.507 provides that the Commission may issue an
emergency order appointing a willing person to temporarily manage and
operate a utility under TeEX. WATER CODE § 13.4132.

7. This Emergency Order may be issued without notice or hearing pursuant to
TEX. WATER CODE § 5.501(b) and 30 Tex. ADMIN. CODE § 35.25.

8. TEX. WATER CODE § 5.501(c) and 30 TEX. ADMIN CODE §§ 35.12 and 291.143(a)
authorize the TCEQ Executive Director to issue this Emergency Order.

9. TEX. WATER CODE §§ 5.501 and 5.507 and 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 291.143(a)
authorize the Executive Director to appoint a person to temporarily manage
and operate a utility that has discontinued or abandoned operations or which
is being referred to the office of the Attorney General for the appointment of a
receiver,

10.  TeX. WATER CODE § 13.4132 provides to the temporary manager the powers
and duties necessary to ensure continued operation of the utility and the
provision of continuous and adequate services to customers including the
power and duty to read meters, bill for services, collect revenues, disburse
funds, access all system components, and request rate increases.

11.  Notice of the emergency order, once it has been issued, is adequate if the
notice is mailed or hand delivered to the last known address of the Sewer |
Utility’s headquarters, in accordance with TEX. WATER CODE § 5.507. The last
known address of Mr. O'Neill is set forth in Finding of Fact No. 5.

IIL.
ORDER

1. This Order shall be effective on the date it is executed by the TCEQ Executive
Director, August 1, 2013.

2. Immediately upon the effective date of this Emergency Order, Sabine River
Authority is hereby appointed to temporarily manage and operate the Sewer
Utility.

3. The Sabine River Authority of Texas shall serve as temporary manager until

such time as a receiver is appointed to operate the Sewer Utility by a court of
proper jurisdiction, or 180 days after the effective date of this Order, January
1728, 2014, whichever occurs first.

4. The Sabine River Authority of Texas is authorized to exercise those powers
and duties necessary to ensure the continued operations of the Sewer Utility |
and the provision of continuous and adequate services to customers, including
the powers and duties set forth in TEX. WATER CODE § 13.4132.
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10.

The Sabine River Authority of Texas shall give the Executive Director an
inventory of all Sewer Utility property received within sixty (60) days of the
effective date of this Order.

The Sabine River Authority of Texas’ requirement to post financial assurance
with the TCEQ in an amount and type acceptable to the Executive Director
has been waived by the Executive Director pursuant to 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE §
291.143(c).

The Sabine River Authority of Texas’ compensation will come from Sewer
Utility revenues in the amount of fifteen dollars ($15.00) per month per
customer. :

The Sabine River Authority of Texas shall report to the Executive Director on -
a monthly basis in accordance with 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 291.143(h).

Pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE § 5.504, the Commission will consider whether
to affirm, modify or set aside this Order at its regular Agenda meeting on
September 4, 2013, at 9:30 a.m., at TCEQ Park 35 Complex, 12118 North I-
35, Building E, Room 201S, Austin, Texas. At the September 4, 2013,
Agenda meeting, Mr. O’Neill may request an evidentiary hearing
pursuant to 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 35.25(c) for the purpose of
presenting evidence and cross-examining witnesses regarding
whether to affirm, modify, or set aside this Emergency Order. An
Administrative Law Judge will be present at the Agenda to
immediately hear the matter should a hearing be requested.

The Chief Clerk shall provide a copy of this Order to each of the parties.

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Richard A. Hyde, P.E.
Executive Director





Byryan W, Shaw, Ph.D., Chairman
Carlos Rubinstein, Commissioner
Toby Baker, Co_mniissioner

Zak Covar, Executive Director

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

- Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution

- August 1, 2013

Via Hand Delivery
Via Certified Mail Return Receipt Requested

Article No. 7002 0860 0004 6476 5485
Via First Class Mail, Postage Pre-Paid

~ Mr, Michael Lantz O'Neill
360 Frontier Drive |
Hemphill, Texas 75948

Re: Michael Lantz O'Neill d/b/a Frontier Park Resort and Marina
Docket Nos, 2013-1429-UCR-E and 2013-1405-UCR-E
Notice of Emergency Order and of Hearing to Modify, Affirm, or Set Aside

Dear Mr. O'Nelll:

On August 1, 2013, the Executive Director of the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (the "Commission” or “TCEQ") issued two Emergency Orders
pursuant to TEX, WATER CODE chs. 5 and 13, TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ch. 341, and
30 Tex. ADMIN. CODE chs. 35, 290, 291 and 305. The party made the subject to this
order is Michael Lantz O'Neill d/b/a Frontier Park Resort and Marina. The
Emergency Orders appointed the Sabine River Authority of Texas ("SRA") as
temporary manager of the public water system and wastewater treatment system
located off Ranch Road 1, Box 1690, Hemphill, Sabine County, Texas.

Pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE § 5.504 the Commission will consider whether to
affirm, modify, or set aside the Emergency Orders Issued on August 1, 2013,
Therefore, the Executive Director has scheduled this matter to be presented at the
Commission’s regular Agenda meeting on September 4, 2013, The Agenda
begins at 9:30 a.m. and will be held at TCEQ Park 35 Complex, 12118 North
IH-35, Building E, Room 201 S, Austin, Texas. A copy of the record of the
materials which have been submitted to the Chief Clerk’s Office and will be used In
the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Agenda process will be provlded to
you at a later time,

P.0.Box13087 e Austin, Texas 78711-3087 ¢ 512-239-1000 ° teeq.texas.gov
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Additionally, please be advised that, pursuant to 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 35.25(c),
you may request at the time of the Agenda an evidentiary hearing on
issuance of the Emergency Orders. An Administrative Law Judge will be
available to conduct a hearing at Agenda on September 4, 2013, should you so
request. Should you have any qleéstions, please contact Ms. Stephanie Frazee, Staff
Attorney in the TCEQ Litigation Division at (512) 239-0600.

Sincerely,

Wit C Dot

Kathleen C. Decker, Director
Office of Legal Services, Litigation Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Enclosure

cc:  Mr. Ronald Hebert, Water Section Manager, Beaumont Regional Office
Mr. Terence Webb, Receivership Coordinator
Mr. Blas Coy, Office of Public Interest Counsel
Sabine River Authority of Texas, P. O. Box 579, Orange, TX 77631-0579
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EMERGENCY ORDER
APPOINTING A TEMPORARY MANAGER
OF A WASTEWATER UTILITY

On August 1, 2013, the Executive Director of the Texas Commisslon on
Environmental Quality (the “Commission” or “TCEQ") issued this Emergency Order
pursuant to Tex. WATER CODE chs, 5 and 13, TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ch. 341 and
361, and 30 TEX. ADMIN., CODE chs. 35, 291 and 305. The party made subject to this
order is Michael Lantz O'Neill d/b/a Frontier Park Resort & Marina ("Mr. O'Neill™y,

. . -
FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Mr. O'Nelll owns a wastewater system lacated 6 miles east of Milafﬁlin Carrice
Creek, Sabine County, Texas (the “Sewer Utility”),

2. The Sewer Utllity provides wastewater treatment service to approximately 38
full-time residences as well as rental units, a store, and a restaurant. Mr.
O'Neill charges each residence $55.66 per month for water, wastewater, and
trash services. As such, the Sewer Utility Is a sewer utility as defined in 30
TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 291.3(52).

3. The Sewer Utility’s wastewater permit, TCEQ Permit No. WQ00114015001,
expired on November 1, 2010, The Sewer Utility does not have a current
wastewater discharge permit, and the Sewer Utility has never had a
Certlficate of Convenience and Necessity.

4. The TCEQ alleges that the Sewer Utility failed to provide appropriate
wastewater treatment so that a potential health hazard has resulted and
falled to adequately maintain facilities or to provide sufficient facilities
resulting in potential health hazards, extended outages, or repeated
interruptions. (“Exhibits A and B").
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5.

10.

L

11,

. ‘Beaumont Regional investigator documerited that Mr

L ees D

Commission records show that the mailing address for Mr. O'Nelll is 360
Frontier Drive, Hemphill, Texas 75948. =

No Qéﬁér Wastewater services arg availab ' ¢ »; T ople who
are served by the Sewer Utllity.. e,

“Duiring &h nspectionof the Se\'\?ﬁérjz_UtilityﬁEé dui

tist 29, 2009, a

. u ' olated

rous reguiréments, The case was referred to the f Attorney .

“Geheral of March'17,°2010. On‘December 20, 2010, the 353" Judicial District
Court in Travls County issued a Default Judgment and Permanent Injunction

(“Default Judgment”) against Mr "O'Nelll, The violations are listed in the

Default Judgment atta '

On February 28, 2011 TEEQ Béalimont Régional investigator documented

that Mr. O'Nelll was not In compliance with the Default Judgment.

the Office of Attorney
for the Default -

On May 30, 2013, a TCEQ Beaumont Regional Investigator documented that
the Sewer Utility was continuing to’dischar  untreatéd wastewater into
Toleédo Bend Reservolr. spédifically, the Water level in the chlorine contact
chamber was approximately 2 inches above the crest of the 50-degree v-
notch Welr, with an estimated flow’of 0;018 illiori ‘gallons per. day. Samples
taken in the chlorine contéct chamber showed that the total chlorine residual
onc 01 mg/L; the pH was 7.42 SU; the dissolved oxygen

centration was 0.01 mg/L; the pH was 7.42 SU; the clssolved
tra frig/L: "and fecal colifotn Was 50,000 coldhles per 100

tion wes 6.09

&

- On‘July 29, 2013, a TCEQ Beaurnonit Regional Invéstigator doclifented that

the Sewer Utllity was continuing to dischargé Untreated wastéwater into
Toledo Bend Reservoir and that the facility was failing to provide appropriate

wastewater treatment and failing to adequately, maintain facllities resulting In

potential health hazards. Exhibits A and B. Specifically, the lift station pump
was Funning but Was not puiiping any w astewater out of the [ift station.
Exchibits A and B. The lift station had approximately 2 feet of capacity before
overflowing. Exhibits A and B. Wet areas around the lift station and down
slopé of the lift station indicated a recent overflow. Exhiblts A and B.
“Additionally; the clarifier contained high amounts of bulking sludge and an
excessive sludge blanket: Exhibits A'and B. The clarifier has'a depth of 10
inches, and the sludge blanket was 9 inches déep. Exhibits A and B. Chlorine
was not being added to the effluent, and thé chlorine contact basin had
sustained severe corrosion, Exhibits A and B, The effluent at the Sewer Utility
was dark brown and thick. Exhibits A and B. The final basin contained bulking
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sludge, which was being discharged into Toledo Bend reseryolr. Exhibits A and
B. Samples were taken just below the v-notch welr at the point of discharge.
Exhibits A and B. Finally, the chlorine pump was not functional. Exhiblts A and
B. The following violations were documented:

a.

I

@

30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125 and TCEQ Default Ordér, Docket No.
2007-0449-MLM-E, Ordering Provision No. 2.b.ii., by failing to submit a
revised September 2006 Discharge Monitoring Report ("DMR") that
reflected the correct pH data for that reporting period.: (Default

- Judgment Violation No. 24.) A review of the Ihtegrated Compliance

Information System showed that the data had not been submitted.

30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(4) and TCEQ Default Qrder, Docket No.
2007-0049-MLM-E,-Ordering Provision No. 2.¢c., by falling to-develop
and.implement gperational and maintenance procedures to prevent
future discharges from the lift stations at the Sewer Utility. (Default
Judgment Violation No. 25,)

30 TEX. ADMIN, CODE § 30.331(b), TEX. WATER CODE §§:26.0301 and

37,003, and TCEQ Default Order, Docket No. 2007-0449-MLM-E,
Ordering Provision No. 2.d., by falling to hire a licensed wastewater
operator and/or complete training and licensing requirements to
become a licensed wastewater operator. (Default Judgment Violation
No. 26.)

30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(1) and Permit No. WQ00114015001,
failing to adjust the feed rate of chlorine tablets to ensure that the total
chlorine residual is malntained between 1.0 and 4.0 mg/L in violation
of. (Default Judgment Violation No. 28.)

30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5) and Permit No. WQ00114015001,

failing to provide duplex pumping capability at the collection lift station.
(Default Judgment Violation No. 30.) :

30 TEX. ADMIN, CODE § 305.125(5) and Permit No. WQ00114015001,
failing to provide high water alarm systems at the collection: lift station - -
and the influent lIft station. (Default Judgment Violation No. 31.)

TEX, WATER CODE § 26.121(a)(1), by falling to have a wastewater
discharge permit,

30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 305.125(5), by falling to ensure that all systems
of collection, treatment, and disposal are properly operated and
maintained.

TEX. WATER CODE § 26.039, by failing to notify the Commission of an
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accndental drscharge or Splll wnthin 24 hours after the occurrence

12. A potentlal health hazard ex_r_st“‘-
provide continuous and adequate wastewater treatmen
Sewer Utllrty IS overflowxng at the lift st ‘ ds

nd ol

's__a result of the Sewer-Utihty s fafltire to
(Exhab!t AY. The
mg untreated

“Code; ‘and TCEQ rules. temporar ' anager is
Aasume- operatlons of the 'Sewer !Ilt\/ to-énsure’ wastewater'is tréated and
'managed in @ manner. that meets TCEQ rule, requirements and complies with
the' T ,?ﬁeﬁ C‘o-de’ as"; all he Te alth an Safety Code, and is

Rlve Authonty ‘of TeXas' ha ag ed t

13, tefiy
manager of the Sewer Utility. The Sab"‘i' & River ity of Texas mailing
address Is P.O, Box 579 Orange, Texas 77631 -0 9 and'phone number is

14.

Il
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

I T As ev1denced by Flndlngs of Fact Nos’.‘ 1,2, and 3, Mr ol Nelll 0wns a retail
public utllity as defined in Tex. WATER CODE § 13. 002(19) '

2. " As ewdenced by Flndmg of Fact' No: 2, the Sewer Utlhty is provndtng retail
sewer Utility service as defined In Tex Water Code § 13 002(20)

3. A utility cannot provide sewer utility service without flrst obtaining a
j certificate of convenience ‘and’ necessity ("CEN™ from the TCEQ. TEX. WATER
" CODE § 13,242, Autility cahinot charge rates’ without first obtaining the
approval of the rates by the TCEQ. TEX. WATER CopE § 13,135 and Chapter
13, Subchapter F.

4. Findings of Fact Nos. 4, 6, 7, and 8 show that the Sewer Utility has
abandoned operations and that the appointment of a temporary manager is
justified as defined in TEX. WATER CODE §§ 13.412(f) and 13.4132 and 30 TEX.
ADMIN. CODE § 291.142(c).

5. TeEX. WATER CODE § 13.4132 authorizes the Commission to appoint a willing
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10,

11.

person to temporarily manage and operate a utility If the utility has
discontinued service or abandoned operations or the provision of services or
has been or Is belng referred to the Attorney General for the appointment of a
receiver under TeEX. WATER CODE § 13.412.

TEX. WATER CODE § 5.507 provides that the Commission may Issue an

emergency order appointing a willing person to temporarily manage and :
operate a utility under TEX, WATER CODE § 13.4132. |

This Emergency Order may be issued without notice or heéring pursuant to
TEX. WATER CODE § 5.501(b) and 30 TEX. ADMIN, CODE § 35.25,

TEX, WATER CODE § 5.501(c) and 30 Tex. ADMIN CODE §§ 35:_i2 and 291.143(a)
authorize the TCEQ Executive Diréctor to issUe this Emergency Order.

TEX. WATER CODE §§ 5,501 and 5.507 and 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 291.143(a)
authorize the Executive Director to appoint a person to temporarily manage
and operate a utility that has discontinued or abandoned operations or which

Is being referred to the office of the Attorney General for the appointment of a__
recelver, ‘

TEX. WATER CODE § 13.4132 provldes to the temporary manager the powers
and dutles necessary to ensure continued operation of the utility and the
provision of continuous and adequate services to customers including the
power and duty to read meters, bill for services, collect revenues, disburse
funds, access all system components, and request rate increases. '
Notice of the emergency order, once It has been Issued, Is adequate if the
notice is mailed or hand delivered to the last known address.of the Utllity’s
headquarters, In accordance with TEX. WATER CODE § 5.507. The last known
address of Mr. O'Nelll is set forth in Finding of Fact No. 5,

IXT.
ORDER

This Order shall be effective on the date It Is executed by the TCEQ Executlve
Director, August 1, 2013,

Immediately upon the effective date of this Emergency Order, Sabine River

Authority Is hereby appointed to temporarily manage and operate the Sewer
Utility.

The Sabine River Authority of Texas shall serve as temporary manager until
such time as a receiver Is appolnted to operate the Sewer Utility by a court of
proper jurisdiction, or 180 days after the effective date of this Order, January
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17, 2014, whichever occurs first.

4. The"Sabiﬁe-RiVer"Adt'ﬁ;é’ri‘Ey of Teéxas I8 authorized to ‘exercise those powers .
and duties necessary to ensure the continted bperations of the Utllity and the

f continuous and adequate services to customers, Including the
rcduties et forth In TEX. WaTER CODE § 13:4132: **

5 The Sabine River Authority of Texas sfiall ,’g.’i've-‘"t"H'eExécu%i’ifé-Dire‘"c“téj‘r an
inventory of all Utility property recelved within sixty (60) days of the effective

“with the TCEQ In‘an’a 16Ut anhd type acceptable to the ExecutivVe Director

has been walved by the Execltive Diréctor pursuant to 30 TEX. ADMIN: CODE §
_29L.143(0).

6. The Sabine River Auﬁ’;hé:jity of Texas’ requirement to post financial assurance

corpensation il come from Utlly

Rivér Arithority of Texas | oGt
fie amoUint of fifteen dolfas ($15.00) per morth per gstomer.

8.  The Sabine River Authdfiity of Texas sha'li 'rép:drt':tci the Executive: Director on
a montnly basis In accordance with 30 Tex. ADMIN. CODE § 291.143(h).

Jant to-TEX. WATER €obE-§-5.504, he Commission Will consider whether
“'to’affiri, modify or et'asidé this’ Order-at’its regular A ehda meetingon
‘september 4, 2013; at 9730 a.m., at TCEQ Park:35 Complex, 12118 North I-
35, Bullding E, Room 201S; Austin, Texas. At the September 4, 2013,
\genda meeting, Mr. O'Neill may request an evidentiary hearing

Uant to 30 TEX. ADMIN. CoDE § 35.25(¢) for the purpose of

" preseénting evidence and ¢ross-examining Witnesses regarding
\Whather to affirm; modify, o set aside this Emergency Order.. An

Adﬁii‘nis't’rativé Law Judge will be present at the Agendato ™
immediately hear the matter sh‘qgld a hearing be requested.

10. The Chief Clerk shall provide a copy of this Order to each of the parties.

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

\ Richard A. Hyde, P.E
epw Y. Executive Director






AFFIDAVIT OF RONALD HEBERT
STATE OF TEXAS 8
§
COUNTY OF SABINE 8

My name is Ronald Hebert, I am the Water Sectlon Manager for the
Beaumont Reglonal Office of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, T am
of sound mind, capable of making thls affidavit, and the facts stated In this affidavit
are within my personal knowledge and are true and correct,

On July 29, 2013, I conducted an Investigation of the Frontier Park
Wastewater Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant. During the
Investigation, it was noted that the collection system lift station had one functional
pump which was running but was not pumping sewage from the lift station. The lift
station had a remalning capacity of 2 feet before It would overflow. There was also
evidence, In the form of wet ground around the lift station, that Indicated a recent
overflow of sewage from the lift statlon. Mr. Michael O'Nelll was present at the time
of the Investigation and was asked about the current status of the lift station,” M. = -
O'Nelll stated that only one functlofial pump was present In the lift station and that
he was checking the Ift statlon several times dally. However, based on my
observationsithe facllity wés not belng malntained. I Informed Mr. O'Nelll of the
problem with the one pump, and he stated he would check the pump, and that it
was probably fouled with a rag.

I next evaluated the wastewater treatment plant. I noted that the plant was
not secure In that several boards were missing from the fence surrounding the
plant and the gate was unlocked, I noted that the alr blower on the plant was
running. The plant was In a state of severe disrepalr with heavy corrosion on most
of the above-water metal components. The mixed lTguor in the aeration basin
appeared darker than healthy mixed liquor should be and appeared thick in nature,
The clatifler was full of sludge as was the chlorine contact basin, and I observed
sludge discharging from the plant Into Toledo Bend Reservolr. The-disinfection
equipment was non-functional, and a sample of the effluent showed that no
disinfection of the discharging effluent was oceurring,

The discharge point from the wastewater tregtment plant Is very close to &
public boat ramp, which was being utllized by fisherman while the investigation was
occurring. Effluent samples were collected of the discharging wastewater and were
sent to the TCEQ and Sabine River Authority Lab for analysis. According to Mr,
Ryan Pay, Sabine River Authority, who was present during the investigation, no
effluent samples are belng collected from the wastewater treatment plant, Visual
observatlons of the wastewater treatment plant and sample results of the
discharging effluent show that the wastewater treatment plant Is not belng
operated In @ manner that Is protective of human health and the environment,






R A; L\\\

Rona!d Hehert
Texas Commission on Env;ronmentat Quality

Refore me, the underslgned authority, on this day personaily appeared
Ronald H‘“bgﬁ:, kivewh'to e to be“the persoh whose Yigme: |8 subscribed to the
'foreg [l i'nstrume'nt-'and"acknow!ed j& e thats axacuted t ame for the
Purposes “anhd consideratlon‘f‘-h”" reinf' xpressed )

leen under my hand and sea! of o 'tca thls 1s§ day of Juiy, A D., ?013.

Notary s_tz;:’mp'f

A \\\\uvu[nm,,
: ‘; o ’*f»a'NOtcuyP






PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATION

Facility Name: Frontier Park

Facility County: Sabine

Investigator: Ronald Hebert

Investigation Number:

Investigation Date: 7/29/2013

Collection system lift
station, Note only one
functional pump, The
pump was running but was
not pumping down the lift
station. The Station had
about 2 feet of capacity
before overflowing,

Collection system 1ift
station inside of wooden
box. Note wet area around
lift station evident of recent
overflow,
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PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATION

Wet ground downhill from
lift station evidence of
recent overflow.

Open manhole just
upstream of treatment
plant. Note flow in
manhole,











PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATION

 On-site lift station just
upstream of treatment
plant. Note only one
functional pump present.
Note flow into lift station,

Aeration basin in treatment
plant. Note that the air was
on. The mixed liquor is
dark brown and appears
thick,











PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATION

o

Clarifier and sawtooth
weir. Note high amount of
bulking sludge in clarifier
and on sawtooth weir. You
can also note the excessive
sludge blanket just below
the water surface, 9’
sludge blanket with
clarifier depth of 10°.
Operational standards state
that sludge blanket should
be no more than 25% of

| the total clarifier depth,

Side view of clarifier and
sawtooth weir. Note high
amount of bulking sludge
and sludge carryover to
chlorine contact basin,
Flow is toward the top of
the picture
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Chlorine contact basin.
Note there was no chlorine
being added to effluent,
Note severe corrosion and
tan color of the effluent,
Effluent should be clear at
this point,

Final basin prior to
discharge to Toledo Bend
Resetvoir. Note high
amount of bulking sludge,
Basin has 1.5 feet of sludge
in 2 foot basin, No sludge
should be present in the
basin, Sludge is being
discharged to Toledo Bend.
Note samples were
collected just blow v-notch
weir (arrow),
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PHOTOGRAPHIC - DOCUMENTATION

Chlorine pump on top of
drum. Note chlorine pump
was non functional,

Bottles of Clorox around
wastewater treatment plant.











No, D-1.GV-10-001692

STATE OF TEXAS, § IN THE DISTRICT COURT
§
Platutiff, § % w
§ & &
v § ~ 5
§ TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXARF
MICHAEL L. O'NEILL, d/b/a § o O
FRONTIER PARK RESORT and § L
MARINA, § A
j g5
Defendant, § 353" JUDICIAL DISTRI&T

DEFAULT JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJUNCTION

................... .

ON THIS DAY the Court called the above-styled case for telal, Plaintif_f, State of

Texas, appeared by its attorney of record and announoed ready fortrial, Defendant, Michael
L. ONeill, an individua) \"\']m docs business as Frontier Park Resort and Marina, the owner
and operator of & public water supply system (PWSS) and a wastewater treatment plant
(WWTP), although having been duly and legally 'cited to appear and answer hevein, failed
to appear and answer, and wholly made default. The Court determined it had jutisdiction
over the subject matier and the parties to this proceeding,  Plaintiff movecl.for defanit

Jjudgment,

The Court, having considered the pleadings, evidence, and irgumerit, is of the opinion™

that it has jurisdiction over the parties and subject matier of this case. Furthermore, the Court ‘
s of the opinion that the State is entitled to Judgment against Defendant on the State’s olaim

for injunctive relief, civil penalties, attorney's fees, unpald administrative enalties, and court
) P P






Jlie

costs,
THE COURT FINDS:

I The State filed its Orlginal Pétition and Application for Perianent Injunction

on Octobm 4 2010

2. Citat on wag issued on Octobm 1, 2010

3. Defendant wasg properi,yserved with eitation and a copy of the State’s peti‘tkm

-+ by personal service wpon Defendant on October 13, 2010,

4, ¢ The cotipleted cmtxcmwas filid onDecembm”] 2010 Themtahon and p1oof‘

of servxce have b@cn on file thh 1.116 clerlc of the court at leaqi ten days, emluding tha day of

. filing and foday ag tequiréd by Rule 107 of the Texas Riules of Civil Prodedure,

5 7 D@‘Fe'11‘cia‘1"it"s“‘lﬂ.=ﬂ' oy mad g address 1a NMichas! O"Nelll, RR 1, Box 1690,

Hemphili, Sebine Cotnty, Texas 75948, The St has iled & Cortificats of Defendant’s Last

Known Address with the records in this cause, S Tishibit'A; Certificate of Defendant’s

Last Known Address.

6. - Defendant is not & member of the United States military, The State has filed ...

a Soldiers’ and Sailors’ Affidavit in the racc;rcls of this 6&&15@. See Fxhibit B, Soldlers’ and
Sallors’ Affidavit.

7. The deadllne for Defendant to file an answer was November 8, 2010,
Defendant failed to file an anawer, o any pleading constituting an answet, and has not

entered an appearance in this cause, Therefote, Defendant has admitted all facts alleged in





~ the State’s Original Petition and Applio‘ation for Permanent Injunction,

8, The administrative and clvil penalties sought in the State’s Original Petition
and Application for Permanent Injunction are liquidated and, proven by:a written instrument
that allows the Coutt to oaléulata the penalties without the necessity of & hearing,

9. At all times relevant to the violations in this mattet, Defendant owned and
operated the a PWSS and WWTP located six miles cast of Milam on Highway 21 at Toledo
Bend Reservoir, Sabine County, Texas (the facility),

FURTHER THE COURT FINDS THA’I"

.........

10, The Smle is e:ntltlud to judgmant Fox 0 vnl pena ues agcunst Dci‘endﬂm of not

- less than $50 nor more than $25,000 for each day that Defendant violated the Tex, Water

© - Code, Tex, Hoalth and Safety Code and Texgs Commission on Environmental Quality

(TCEQ) rules, Tex, Water Code, § 7,102, Each day of a ooptim.timg violation is a separate
violation. Id, The State is only seeking civil peli'al.ties against Defendant for the statutory
minimum of $30,00 per violatlon per duy. The oivil penalties for the violations -aré liquidated
and proven by a written instrument that allows the Court to caloulate the penalties without

the necvssity of a heating,

Violation 1: Failure to Maintain Plant Operations Manual
11, The Court findg that the Defenclmlt failed from February 13, 200’7 to October
4, 2010 to compllc and maintain a complete and up-to-date plant operations manual in

violation of 30 TAC § 290,42(]) and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-07 12-PWS-E, Ordering





Provision 2.£1, . Therefors, Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 290.42(1) and TCEQ Order
‘Docket No, 2007:0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.£1. for1,328 days. |

in. Chemieal Monitoring Plan

12, “The Gourt finds that thie Defénidant failed from February 13, 2007 to Qctober
420100 prepare and maintdinanup:to-date chemical ind miciobiological monitoting plan
forthe facllity ir violation 0f30 TAC §290:121(h) and TCEQ Ortler DocketNo, 2007-0712-
PWS.E, Ordering Proviston 2.b.il, Therefore, Defendant hds violated 30 TAC § 290.121(a)

and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-07 12-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.b.i, for 1,328 days,

Violation's; Fallure to Provide Meters - =

Thie Cotit ﬁﬁds“thﬁt'the'}:)’ésféﬁdam»fanéaflfi-mﬁ”ﬁebrueuy 13, 2007 to October

4, 2010 to provide one mctcl al edch Tésidents in violntmn of 30 TAC§ 290.44(d)(4) and

.. .TCEQ Olclm Docl et No 2007~ 071'7~PWS~]3 Ordening Provnsxon 2h it. Therefore,

- Defendant has violated 30 TAC-§ 290:44(d)(4) ‘aid TCEQ Order Dacket No, 2007-0712-
PWS-E, Ordering Provision Z:h.ii. for 1,328 days.”

Violation 4: Failure to Dead-Tind Main Flixshing Reeords

14.  The Coutt finds that the Defendant failed from February 13, 2007 to October
4, 2010 to maintain records of the dates that dead-end mains were flushed for the facility and
maintainthose records for at least two years in violation of 30 TAC § 290.46(H(3)(A)(Iv) and
TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Orderlng Provision 2.4, Therefore,

Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 29046(H)(3)(A)({v) and TCEQ Order Dacket No, 2007-





O712«PWS~E, Ordeting Provision 2.d.1H. for 1,328 days; |

Yiola hgn 5: Faily ure to Maints ;ug 1 Distribution Ma p,

. 15‘ The Court finds that the Defendant feuled irom I’ebmmy 13, 2007 to Ootobet
4, 2010 to compile and maintain an up-to-date distribution map in violation of 30 TAC
§ 290.46(n)(2) and TCEQ Order Docket No, 2007-07 1 2-PWS-1 B, Ordering meswn 2.d.iv.
| Therefore, Defendant hag violated 30 TAC § 29046(n)(2) and TCEQ Order Docket No,
2007-0712-PWS-E, Ozdermg Provision 2.d.1y, for 1 328 days.

Violation 6 I‘wilm 5 to Immll Well bealmg Blog!g

16, The Court ﬁnds that thﬁs 'Defendant failecil ﬁom Februmy13,?007t000t0bcr -
4,2010 to instan a proper sealing block around u well at the PWSS in violation of 30 TAC
8§ 290.41(eX(3)(T) and TCEQ Order Dacket No. 2007-0712-PWEI3, Ordering Pravigion
2.L.11., Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC §290,41(c)(3)(7) and TCEQ Qrder Docket
No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordeting Provision 2,£i, for 1,328 days,

Vielation 7; Fnﬂij |
| 17. The Court finds that the Defendant failad from February 13, 2007 to October

4, 2010 to establish an appropriate backflow prevention program for the facility In violation

of 30 TAC § 29044(h)(1) and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering

Provision 2.h.1, Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC §290.44(h)(1) and TCEQ Order
Docket No, 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2,h.1, for 1,328 days.

Yiolation 8: Failure fo Record Chemicals Used






AL

18.  The Court finds that the Defendant falled from August 20, 2009 to October 4,

2010 to record the amount of chericals used ench weel 4t the facility i violation of 30 TAC

- §290.46(5(3)(A)()(ID), Thersfore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC §29046(H(3)AYD(LD)

'g‘f:.{for 41 Odayé"“ L. S L

19, Thé Couiet find ihat the Difidant Riled fond Augiiét 20,2009 to October 4,

- 2010 to record the volumeof water treated wacli webleat the fasility *i’ﬁ"’@idlﬁti’oﬂ'@f 30 TAC

§ 290, 46(1’)(3)(A)(11)(III) Thmafme, Dafcndfmt “has Vlolated 30 TAC

907+ The Cilirt finds +ithe Deferidant fiilad fiom Augist 20,2009 to Qctober 4,

- 2010 torionitor and fiadord thie dlstnfectant residial concen’cwﬁon i the distribution system

at e facility at léast onids svery Seveti day i Violation §£30 TAC § 290.110(c)(#)(A) and
30 TAC § 290.46(H3)B)i). " Thetefore;” Defendant lms “yiolated 30 TAC
§ 290.110()(#)(A) ahd 30 TAC § D90:AG(H(3 )L Fot 410 days.
Violation 11: Failire 16 Trispeet Tanld -

| 21, 'The Gourt finds thiaf the Defendant failed frory Augist 20,2009 to Qetober 4,
2010 to Ingpect the ground storage and pressure tanks at the Facility annually in violation of
30 TAC § 290.46(m)(1). Therefore, Dei’;endant liag violated 30 TAC § 290.46(m)(L) for 410

days,





Yiolation 12; Failure to Have Licensed Water Worles Qperstoy

- 22, The Court {inds that the Defendant failed from August 20, 2009 to October 4,
2010 to operate the ihmlity unc o the direct supervision of an appropr ately licensed water
works operator in violation of 30 TAC § 290.46(¢), Therefore, Defendant has violated 30
TAC § 290.46(e) for 410 days.

Yiolation 13: Failure to Calibrate Well Meter
23, The Court finds that the Defenduant failed from August.20, 2009 to October 4,

2010 to calibrate the well moter af the facility-at least once every three years in violation of

30 TAC § 290.46(s)(1) and 30 TAC § 290.41(c)Y(N)(3). Therefore, Defendant his violated
30°TAC § 29046(s)(1) and 30 TAC § 290.41(c)(N)(3) for 410 days.

'V'iolation 14: Failure to Checls Disinfectant Residual Analyzer

24, The Coutt. finds that the Defendant failed from August 20, 2009 to October 4,
2010 to check the accura@ of the disinfectant residual analyzer at least once every 30 days °
in violation of 30 TAC § 290.46(s)(2)(C)(1). Therefors, Defondant has violated 30 TAC
§ 290.44(s)(2)(C)() for 410 days. |

Violation 15: Failure to Provide Proper Well Capacity,

25.  The Court finds that tiae Defendant failed fram August 20, 2009 to Octobor 4,
2010 to provide a well capacity of 0.6 gallons per minute (gpm) per connection in violation
0f30 TAC § 290.45(b)(1)(B)(1) and 30 TAC § 290.45(e)(1)(B)(). Therefore, Defendant has
violated 30 TAC § 290.45(b)(1)(BXi) and 30 TAC § 290.45()(1)BY() for 410 days,

ginte





Violation 16: Failuxe to Provide Proper Tank Capagity

26, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from February 13, 2007 to October
4, 2010 to provide a pressure tank capacity of at 1’6&1’&20 gallons per community connaction
and 10 galions per IIdnf_C(ii11lﬁllflity conpéction in violation of 30 TAC § 290.45(c)(1)(B)(iv)
and TCEQ O.rder Daogcket No, 2007-0712-PWS-E, OL‘dei‘iﬁé"Pl‘oviSion 2:h.iii. ‘Therefore,
Defendant ﬁas violated 30 TAC § 290.45(e)(1)(B)(fv) and*TCEQ Otder Docket No, 2007-
0712-PWS-E; Ordering Provision 2,h.1il: foir 1,328 days,

) =Viol'a'tion.‘17:< Fallure to:Provide an Iuspeétion Port

T s Court finds it the Dofendant failed from Angust 20, 2000 to Qctober 4,

28 The Court finda thiat fig Défendent failéd ﬁ'giﬁJtlﬁ‘é:‘B;;v{%ZOOS to Qctober4, 2010

o provide the 2004 CCR to customets and to submit the required Certificate of Delivery to
the TCEQ in violation of 30 TAC §§ 290,271(b), 290.274(a) -arid'-290.274(c), and TCEQ
Order DocketNo. 2007-0712-PW8-E, Ordéring Provision 2.4, b and ¢, Therefore, Defendant
has violated 30 TAC §§.290.271(b), 280.274(a) and 290.274(c), and TCEQ Order Docket
No, 2007-0712:PWS-B, Ordering Provision 2.4, b and ¢ Tot 849 days.

Violation 19; Failure to Proyide 2005 CCR

29.  The Court finds that the Defendant failed from June 3, 2008 to October4, 2010

to provide the 2005 CCR to customers and to submit the required Certificate of Delivery to

8





the TCEQ in violation of 30 TAC §8 290.271(b), 290.274(a) and 290,274(c), and TCEQ
OrderDocket No, 2007-07 12-PW8-E, OrderingProvision?.a, bande. Therefore, Defendant
has violated 30 TAC §§ 290.271(1';), 280.274(a) and 290.274(c), and TCEQ Order Docket
No. 2007-0712-PWS.E, Ordering Provision 2,4, b and ¢ for 849 days,

Violation 20; Failure to Provide 2006 CCR

30, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from June 3,200810 October4, 2010
to provide the 2006 CCR to customers and to submit the required Certificate of Delivery to

the TCEQ in violation of 30. TAC §§ 290.271(b), 290.274(s) and 290.274(c), and TCEQ

T ORIEr DESKSENG. 200707 12 B WEH, Orderng Brovision 2.8, band o, Therefore, Defendant

has Violated 30 TAC §§ 290.271(b), 290.274(s) and 290,274(c), and TCEQ Order Docket
No. 2007-0712-PWS-E, Ordering Provision 2.8, b and ¢ for 849 days,

Yiolation 21: Bailure to Proyvide 200 C'CR

31, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from October 15, 2009 .to Qctober
4, 2010 to provide the 2007 CCR to customers ntidl to submit the required Certificate of
Deltvery to the TCEQ in violation of 30 TAC §§ 290.271(b), 290.274(a) and 290.274(c).
Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC 88 29-0.271(b), 290,274 (a) and 290.274(c) for 354
days,

Vielation 22 Failure to Tssup Boll Water Notice

32, The Court finds that the Defendant falled on J anuary 12, 201010 issue a proper
boil water notlee and notify the TCEQ of the issuance of the boil water notice in violation
of 30 TAC § 290.46(q)(1). Therefore, Defendant violated 30 TAC § 290.46()(1) for one

9





- day, -

Vialation 23; M_l:g;\:g Yssue Boil Water Notice

33,4 - The Court finds that the Defendant féxiled from July 16, 2010 until July 23,
2010 toissuen pmpel boil watm nédtice and nottfy tha TCEQ of the i issuance ofthe boil water
notice in violation of 30 TAC § 290. 46(g)( 1) Thalefom, Defemdant vmlated 30 TAC

7§ .290:46()(1) Tor eight days.

Vi laﬂ' 'n"in 4” Fallire e io Submxt Rewsed Dischame Mon tormg Renori;(l},l}i,&l

The Comt finds that the De}fendant I"uled h o I'ebrumy 13, 2007 fo October

e 0tsbztd‘§ptb2006DMR Whiah roResked 6 ooreat i data for

- that mpmting period in Violatidn'of 30 TAC § 305 125 zmcl TCP’Q Order Docl«at No, 2007-

305,125 and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007:0049- MLM~E Oldenng:vais for 2.b.dl, for
1,328 deysr : R

Vialation 25; Failure to Tniplement Procedirres for thie Lift Stations

35, The Cotirt finds that the Defendant failed fioin Febtuary 13,2007 to October

| 4,201010 develop and Inplement opemtmnal and mamtcnance pmcedmes to pwvcnt futm &
dmch’trges from the lxﬂ stations at the famhty in violation of 30 'I‘AC § 305, 125(4) zmd |
TCEQ Order Docket No, 2007-0049-MEM-E, Ordering Provision 2.6, Therefore, Deferdant
has violated 30 TAC § 305.125(4) and T’CEQ Qrder Docket No. 2007—0049~mM-E,

Ordering Provision 2.¢, for 1,328 days.
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Yiolation 26: Failure to Mire Licensed é)perawr

36, The Court finds that the Defendant failed fiom February 13, 2007 to October
4, 2010 to hire a licensed wastewater operator and/or conplete training and licensing
foquirements to become  licénsed wastewater operator in violation of 30 TAC § 30.331(b),
Tex. Water Code §§ 26,0301 and 37.003, and TCEQ Order Dockst No, 2007-0049-MLM-E,
Ordering Provision 2,4, T[_‘herefare:, Defendant hag violated 30 TAC § 30,331(b), Tex, Water
Code §§ 26.0301 and 37,003, and TCEQ Quder Docket No. 2007-0049-MLM-E, Ordering

Provigion 2.d. for 1,328 days.

o
¥

ation fﬂim’t A

‘ Violat;’ggﬂulﬁ?’."}.: Failure toggbmit Cer lfm

37. ‘The Court finds that the Defendant fhiled from February 13, 2007 to October

4, Z(lllp to submit written certiflcation of compliance with the effluent limitations and
monitoring requirement specified in Permit No, WQO0114015001 in violation TCEQ Order
Docket No, 2007-(')049-1\/ITJM~E, Ordering Provlsibﬁ 2.6, Therefore, Defendant hias violated
Permit No. WQO00114015001 and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0049-MLM-E, Ordering
Provision 2.e. for 1,328 days,

YViolation 28: Failure to Adjust Feed Rate of Chilorine

| 38, The Court findy that the Defendant failed from December 11, 2008 to Ogtaber
4,2010 to adjust the feed rate of chlorine tablets to énsure that the total-chlorine residual is
maintained between 1,0 and 4.0 mg/l in violation of 30 TAC § 305,125(1) and Permit No.
WQ00114015001. Therefore, Defendant has violated 30 TAC §305.125(1) and Permit No,
WQO00114015001 for 617 days,

11





Violation 2

39, 'I‘he Court ﬂnds thét the Defendant failed ﬁom Deoember 1 1 2008 to October
4y 2010 to xccorcl thc time’ and fdefitity of the mdmdual who rend the et‘i‘luent flow rate,
 ‘colletted the sample‘and Goridiicted the Hnalyies foi the sffluent fotal chiloririe for the fonths
~of Septembex, Ootober aiid Noveinber 2008 ih v1olatxon 6 30 TAC §3 19 ’7(&) and Permit
No. WQOOI 14015601; Thérsfore, Daferidantha olated 50TAC § 319, 7('1) and PermitNo.

WQUOT14015001 For 617 days. R

thtion 30: Failure to Provide Dunlex Pumnixm Capiibili hﬁ

BT Thu Court finds thiit the Dafcnd’mt fmled nom December 1 l 200 8 to Octobm
©4,2010 pxowde duplex pumping mp'tblhty dt the collf:ouon let stalion in violation of 30

. ="-TAC 5 305 17‘3(‘3) atd PclmitNo WQ()()] 1401 5001 ’]‘her@f m*e:, Dei’endant Has vio rxled 30

' »TAC§305125(5) and Paiiit No: WQ00114015001 Hor 6T days

- Violition 313 Fillure to Povide Figh Witer' Alarin Systoms

M- *The Gourt finds that the Defendaft Tailed from Decexber 11, 2008 to October
4, 2010 to pmﬂda high water alarm systems at the collection system 1ift station and the
inﬁﬁent lift station in violation of 30 TAC §305.125(5) and Peﬁﬁit‘ﬂair-‘fWQoomo 15001.
Tharefore; Defendant has violated 30 TAC § 305:125(5) and Permit No. WQ00114015001
for 617 days:

Violation 32¢ Failure to Provide High Water Alarim Systems

42, The Court finds that the Defendant failed from December 11, 2008 to October
4, 2010 to provide provide noncompliance notification for effluent that deviates from the

12





permit limitation greater than 40% in violation of 30 TAC § 305.125(1) and Permit No,
' WQOO] 14015001, Therefore, Defendant has violated 50 TAC § 305, 125(1) antd PermxtNo
WQOOl 14015001 for 617 days,

Yiolation 33: Failure to Pay Administrative Pepalties

43, The Court finds that the Defendant failed to pay $55,921.00 in administrative
penalties ordered to be paid by TCEQ Order No, 2007-0712-PWS-E ($6,670.00 ordered
administrative penalties), TCEQ Opder No. 2008-] IOBﬂPWS-E( ($716,00 ordered
administrative pena tms), arid TC “EQ Order No. 2007~ 0449 MLM~E (‘548 335,00 01dered "
Wadmmistntwe pcmlties) S Comm

ATTORNEY’S FEIS
THE COURT FURTHER FINDS THAT:

44,  The State ls entitled to recover from Defendant its reasonable attorney’s fees,
investigative costs, and court costs inowred in prosecuting this matter, Tex. Water Code §
7.108; Tex, Gov't Code § 402,006(c).

45, Asevidenced by the State’s affidavit, admitied by the Court, and filed with the
records in this cause, the State’s reasonable and necessaty attorney’s fees in this case are
$6,413.75, See Exhibit ¢, Affidavit for Attorney’s Foes,

46.  Agovidenced by the State’s nffidavit, admitied by the Court, and filed with the
records in this cavse, { the State’s reasonable and necessary attorney’s fees in the event that
procaedmgs to colleet this juclpmcnt become necessary are $2,000.00, See Exhibit C,

Afﬁdawt Lcr Attorney’s Fees





Al

47, Asevidenoed by the State’s affidavit, admitted by the Court, and filed with the

records of this cause, the State’s reasonable and necessary atiorney’s fees in the event of an

~ appeal by the Defendant to the Court of Appeals are §5,000,00, See Exhibit C, Affidavit for

Attorney’s Fees.

48, - A evidenced by the Stat’s affidavit, admitted by the Court, and filed with the

-+ josords of this cAuss, Tie State’s reasonable ind Hiccessaty attofney's T8gs in the event of an |
% ppeal by the Defendani totlie Texas Siipretiie Cout i prepration of & petition for review

* are $8,000.00, Seg Bxhibit ¢, Afﬁdawt for Attorney’s Fees,

49."‘" As ev1denoed by tha State § ’lfﬁda‘!lt, admn;ted by itie Couﬂ ‘and filed with the
recotds of this cause, the State’s ‘etisotiabléand hecessary attomey g fees in the ovent that
a petition for review by the Texas Su prerie Cotit 18 Hrbted are §15,000.00. See Exhibit C,
Affidavit for Attorriey's Fees,

FURTHER THE COURT FINDS THAT:

| OTHER

50, The Couit finds that the clvil penalties agsessed herein are payable to and for

- the bénefit of a gavernment unit and are not comipensation for actual pecuniary loss, and,

therefore, are ﬂot dischargeable under federal bankruptey laws.

51, The Court finther finds that the applicable judgment interest rate for the date
of this Default Judgment as published by tha Texas Office of Consumer Crecﬁt in aceordance
with §304.003 of the Texas Finance Code is {ive percent.

IT IS THEREFORE QRDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED THAT:
14





52, Immediately upon the date the Dofendant receives this Default Judgment,

Defendant, his agents, employees, and all parsons in active concert or participation with him

are hezeby permanently en‘loincd 88 follows: Def‘cndamt ahall ensure that the WWTP and

PWSS are operated In oomplmncc w1th all ﬂw provisions of the l“e\. Ilealth & Safety Codc

the Tex, Water Code, TCEQ rules promulgated under the Tex, Health & Safety Code and the

Tex. Water Code, and TCEQ lssued permits,

53.  Withinthirty (30) days afier the date Defendant receives this Default Judgment,

Defendant, his agents, employees, and all pexsom in active concert or pm ticzpaucm with im

are hereby pen manen{ly enjomed as 1ollows

A,

Defendant shall compile and maintain a complete and up-to-date plant
operations manual in acoordance with 30 TAC § 290.42(1) and TCHQ)
Order Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E.

Defendant s;lmll ‘pxlepam and malnt&in' an up;tmdate éhelnicﬂl and
miorobfological monitoring plan in accordance with 30 TAC
§ 290.121(x) and TCEQ Order Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E,
Defendant shall provide one metér per residence in accordance with 30
TAC § 290.44(d)(4) and TCEQ Order Docket No, 2007-0712-PWS-E,
Defendant shall maintain records of the dates that dead-end mains were
flushed and maintain records of those dates for at least 2 years in
accordance with 30 TAC § 290.46(fH(3)A)IV) and TCEQ Order

Daocket No, 2007.0712-PWS-E,
15





S1Ll]

Defendant shall compile and maintain an up-to-date distribution map

in accordance with 30 TAC § 290.46(n)(2) and TCEQ Order Docket

- No, 2007-0712:PWS-E,
. Défendant shall install a‘proper sealing block around.all wells at the

PSS in accordance with 30.TAC §290:41(e)(3)(T) and TCEQ Order

Docket No. 2007-0712Z:PWSB. e 1o 8 s e

ot Defendant shall sstablish an appropriatebackflow prevention program

2o in accordance with 30 TAC § 290.44(h)(1)-and TCEQ Order Docket

e o0 oA, T

- Defendant-shall record the. amount of-chemical used each weel in

1 adeatdance with 30 TAC § 29046(REYAYDT.

K.

Defendant ‘shall fedord” e ‘volume of water treated each week in

accordance with 30 TAC § 200.46(H(BUAYII).

. Defendant -shall monitor and record the disinfectant residual
* voncéntration in the fdl‘stributivon system at least once every seven days
~in>aecordance swith .30 TAC. § 290.110(c)(4)(A) and 30 TAC §

290 46(H)B)D.

Defendant shall fngpect the system's ground storage and pressure tanks

~ annually In accordance with 30 TAC § 290,46(m)(1).

Defendant shell operate the public water system under the direct

-supervision of an.appropriately Heensed water works operator in

16





S,

accordance with 30 TAC § 290.46(¢)

Defendant shall calibrate all well meters in a&cordanae with 30 TAC
§ 290.46(s)(1) and 30 TAC § 290,41(e)(3)) and continue to do so
every three years,

Defendant shall check the acouracy of the disinfectant residual analyzer
at least once every 30 days in accordance with 30 TAC
§ 29046(5)2)C)C). |

Defendantshall provide a well capacity of 0,6 gallong pet minute (gpm)

~ perconnicotion in Accotdance with 30 TAC § 290 AS(5Y(15(BY(D aid 30

TAC § 290,45(c)(1H(B)(A).
Defendant shall provide a pressure tank capacity of at least 20 gallons

per community couneotion and 10 gallons per non-community

. connection in accordance with 30 TAC § 290.45(c)1)B)(1v) and

TCEQ Otder Docket No, 2007-0712-PWS-E,

Delendant shﬁll equip the pressure tank with an ingpection post in
accordance with 30 TAC § 290.43(d)(1).

Defendant shall provide annual Cons'umer- Confidence Reports to
customers and submit required Certiﬁ_céites of Delivery tothe TCEQ in
accordance with 30 TAC § 290.271(b), 30 TAC § 290.274(a), 30 TAC
§ 290.274(c).

Defendant shall issue proper boil water notices and notify the T CEQ of

17
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the issuance of any'bpil water notices in accordance with 30 TAC
8 290746(q)(1):
. Doferidant ‘shall submit the Septémber 2006 Discharge Monitoring

_ Report (DMR) that includes tie coriect pH data for that reporting

- pertod in d6sotdnos With 30 TAC§ 3 03:125 and TCEQ Default Order

Daoket No. 2007:0449:MLMEE, -

ey

" Defendant shall develop and iglement operational and malntenance

- procedilies ‘ta piévent’ fitiirs “dischaiges from the lift stations in

e ith 30 TAG § 40, 125(4). Tox. Water Code § 26,121 and

TCEQ Default Ordet Dockst No- 2007-0449-MLM-E.

- Paferiddnt Sl thive o Tickiised Operator and/or complete training to
Hiodine ‘a licendsd Wastewateir Spéritor in'aocordance with 30 TAC

| §30,331(b), “Tex. Watér Code §§26.0301 and 37.003, and TCEQ

Defiult Oder Docket Na. 2007-0449-MLM-E.

Deféndant shall submit written certification of compliance with the

- effinent firmitations and monitoring i;éqiii"'iiéin ents specified in Water

Quality Permit No, 'WQDO’]’Z’:OlS-OO and required under TCEQ Default
Otéer Diocket No, 2007-0449-MLM-E,

Defendant shatl adjust the feed tate}of chlorine tablets to ensure that the
total chlorine i'esidual is maintained between 1.0 and 4,0 mg/l, and

submit one montl’s logs that include total chlorine residusl results in

18





compliance with effluent limitations and monitoring requirements, as
required by 30 TAC § 305,125(1) and TCEQ Default Order DocketNo.
2007-0449-MIM-E,

Defqn dt}ﬂtf shall s;sz_nﬁ one month’s ope;atio_ns Iéés that i{lqlgdﬁgan&plg _.
oolle.cti.on} éuid analyses, and effluent flow reading ‘resﬁlts, and .shall
maintain all operations logs in accordance with 30 TAC § 319.7(&) and
Permit No, WQ00114015001,

Defendlant shall ensure that the vollection system lift station has duplex

~ pumping capacity af afl times and that the T stations serving the

BB,

system are fully operational at nll times, in accordance with 30 TAC
§ 303.125(5) and Permit No, WQ00114015001.

Defendant shall install audio-visual bigh level elarms on all lify stations
serving the wastewater treatrent plant and ensure that all such audlo~
visual iaig%; leve! alarms are propez.'ly maintained and pAroparva |
functioning at all times, in accordance with 30 TAC § 305,125(5) and
Petmit No, WQO0114015001,

Defendant shall develop and implement & Standard Operating
Procedure (SOP) for non-compliance reporting for effluent violations
that deviate by 'mor.e than 40% from the permitted efffuent limitation
and submlta copy of the SOP to TCEQ Repgion 10 office in accordance

with 30 TAC § 305,125(1) and Permit No, WQO00114015001,

19
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54, Deféridantshall submit areport within 60 days of the issuance of the permanent
irjunctlon that documents that compliance with the above permanent injunctive provisions

at the PWSS and WWTP, The report must be sipported with photographs, logs and other

: dGCLnﬁr{ex{fatIOh; aid Frinst be sent fo thé attention of David L, Green, Assistant Attorney

Gerieral, Bivironiontal Protection and Adbiniétrative Law Division, P.O. Box 12548,

53,  TheDefendant shall providethe TORQ aceess to PWSS and WWTP to perform

invcsugwtmns and évaluatmns,

. "15 set forth above. JeT

56: " Thc Cletl» of thls Coult shall issue Pemmnent InJunotzon ag'unstDcf@nd ant,

- and hisagents, emp[oyees, and all p@i‘s‘oné'iﬁifﬁétsfi*)é’édﬁoéfﬁdt partictpation with Defendant,

- IT IS I‘URTHER ()RDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED THAT:

57, Dt,fend'mt is lable fo 1116 Staté for a oivil penalty of ONE MILLION TWO

HUNDRED BIGHTY-ONE "THOUSAND FIFTY “DOLLARS AND NO CENTS

($1.281,050.00) for violations of ihe Tex, Healih & Sufely Code, the Tex. Water Code,

TCEQ rules, and Permits and Orders fssued by the TCEQ.

58" "The State, therefors, shall have judgment against, In the amount of ONE

MILLION TW0 HUNDRED BIGHTY-ONE THOUSAND FIFTY DOLLARS AND NO

CENTS ($1,281,050,00), which constitutes Paragraphs"ﬂ through 42, for 25,621 days of
violatlons of the Tex, Health & Safety Code, the Tox., -Wa'tef Code, TCEQ rules, and Perrnits

and Ordets issued by the TCEQ at $50.00 per day.
20





59, Defendant, is linble to the State for adiminisirative penalties of FIFTY-FIVE
»TI-IQUSAND NINE HUNDRED TWENTY.ONE DOLLARS AND NO CENTS
($55,921.00) for amounts owned under TCEQ Order No. 2007—0712-PWS-E‘(3%6,670.00
ordered administrative penalties), TCEQ Order No, 2008-1103-PWS-E ($716.00 ordered
administrative penaltles), and TCEQ Order No. 2007-0449-MLM-E ($48,535.00 ordered
administrative penalties).

¢60,  TheState, therefore, shall have judgment against Defendant, for administrative

penalties of FIFTY-FIVE THOUSAND NINE I—IUNIjR.ED TWENTY-ONE DOLLARS

~ AND NO CENTS (§55,921.00) for the unpaid and owing administrative penalties, -

61,  The State shall also have judgment against Defendant, for its attorney’s fees
in the amount of TWIEN"I.‘Y~SIX THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED SEVENTY-TWQ
DOLLARS AND FIFTY CENTS ($26,972.50),

62.  Should Defendant fail to make atimely payment of the amounts due and owling
under this Default Judgment, the State shall also have judgment against the Defendant for
the State’s necessary and rensonable attorney’s fees for prdoeedings to collect judgment [n
this case in the amount of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($2,000,00),

63,  Should Defendant appeal this Default Judgment to the Court of-Appeals, the
- State shall also have Judgment against the appealing Defendantfor the State’s -neoeséary and-
reasonable attorney’s fees in the amount of FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO
CENTS ($5,000,00) |

64,  Should Defendant appeal this Defanlt Judgment to the Texas Supreme Court,
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. the State shall also havé judgment agaiust the appealing Defendant for the State’s necessary
“and reisonable attorney’s fees to prepate a petition for review inthe amount of EIGHT

. THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO CENTS (§8,000.00).

65 Shoiild Défetidant appeal tiis Default Jidgineiit to the Téxas Supreme Coust,

~ - and élliotij(ii‘zf petitioi for Levwwbogmntedby the Texas Suprems Court, the State shall also
haye judgment against Defendant for the State’s necessary a‘nd"_i“é:éi'éidi‘i‘éﬁlé’Rt’td"\"ﬁi‘éy"s feed in
*the aitiount ¢ FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($15,000.00),

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED THAT:

66, Dofetidant Is ordered fo'pay all Sasts of couirt itichirred through the date of this

" Default Tudgritent ad thioss oottt cost which thay be fnsufted to dolleot this Défault

 Judgitient iFeoessary. o TR

67. Defendant shall pay post-gudgment initer st on-all amounts in this cause and

| continually ther eaftcx atthe legal rate of ﬁvs pewem frofh the date of this Defanlt Judgment

util paid in full, forall of which execttion shall issie.

68, - .Defepdz_mpshﬁll pay all amounts awdided in thiéiDef‘aul’t thdgmant within 30

days of the eniry of ihis Default Judgment.

69, Payient for all- amounts awarded i this Default Judgment shall be made by
certified chieck or money order made payable to the State of Texas and shall bear the
identifying number “A.G. # 093142-'1 15" Checks shali be delivered to Division Chief,
Environmental Protection and Administeative Law Divigion, Office ofthe Attorney General,

P.Q, Box 12548, Austin, Texas 78711-2548.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECRERD THAT: '

70.  The effective date of this Default Judgﬁ'xent is the date it s signed by the Judge
Pregiding,

71.. . Bxeoution shall issue for all monles awarded herein,

72, The State of Texas is allowed stich weits and prooeésés asmay be necessary .in
the enforcement and collection of this Default Judgment, -

73, Allreliefnot exprossly hereln grantod is denied. This isafinaljudgment‘ This
Default Judgment finally clispéses, without reservation, of all parties and all claims brought

or that reasonably could have been brought,

SIGNED on Decomberaf &, 2010,

‘ o J'Uli)/G/ﬁRESIDI 1G
ENTRY REQUESTED BY: '

GREG ABBOTT
Attorney General of Texas

DANIEL T. HODGE
First Assistant Attorney General

BILL COBB
Deputy Attorney General for Civil Litigation

BARBARA B, DEANE
Chief, Environmental Protection and





Admmistmuve Law Dmsmn ‘

DAVID PREISTFR .
Chief, Bnvironmental Protection Section

17/

DAVIDL.

03’?7"7"6"
Assistant Attmney General
Envitonmental Protection and
Administrative L Division
- P,0. Box 12548, Capitol Station -
_Austin, Texas 7871 1~2548
el (512 4753205

AR (512) 320-0052....

ATTORNEYS F_OR. THE STATE OF TEXAS
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CAUSE NO. D-L-GY-10-001692 Bﬁt{g@f&”&mz
STATE OF TRXAS, § IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF
: §
Plaintlft, 'y
§ ~ | :
V. § TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
MICHAEL L, O'NEILL, d/b/a § :
PRONTIER PARK RESORT and g
MARINA, § E
‘ § 3535 JUDICIAL DISTRICT
DBofendant, § Co
MMM’L&H@M&D&B@,&
PO CLERK:OF COUR’I ;

Pursuant {o 'I‘exas R,ule of Civilfrooeclux_*e 239a, fhé S.tn‘tva of Texaé, ‘Pmlnti £
in,the above-entitled and numbersd cavse, certifios that t'he Iast known aciclrcss- of Michae]
£, O°Nelll in the above-entitled and numbered cause agalnst whom default judgment will bo
réndetec, is as follows! |
" Michael L, OfNeill

" RR 1, Box 1690 -
Hoemphill, Sabine County, Texas 75948 : .' .

Respéétf‘u]ly submittod,

OREG ABBOTT
Attorney Geneyal of Toxas

. DANIEL T\, HODGE,
Firat Assistam Attorney Genoral

F.:_[f& Rodr!guezuMsndo:ia BT





10 Novamber 18 A10:01
Amalla Rodﬁguaz»Mendoza
Distriot Clark

(d NGO, D1 W10 T {
CAUBE NOQ, D-1-GY~10-001692 Dﬁvg\?'!iaozigg 1692

STATE OX TEXAS, § N THE DISTRICT COURT OF
§
Plaintiff, §
Voo e § TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
§
MI("I*IAI‘}L L. O'NEILL, d/b/a §
FRONTIER PARK RESORT and §
) :.MARINA, B o
foddat s I © 353 JUDICTAL DISTRICT -
Del‘mdunt. § e

PLAINTINS SOLDIERS” & SAILORSLAREIDAYVIT

Befow mc, the undmslgned nmtmy, on Uns day pméomally appeared Wnnda
Pittman, apm*son whose identity 13 lmown to we, AﬂovI administercd an oam to her, upon her
oaﬁh shcjsmcl. ' | T
| 1 hcxebycextify tlmtTnmpmsonaIly aoquaintmdwuh)thef‘aota&tﬂmdhmem and that
the foregoing s true and correct, My name {8 Wandu Piu;man, andlama !egal assigtant working
unclm' ihe direction ofDavid Green, the Assistant Attorney General 1 epwscntmg tlw s State in this
matter, State gf! exas v, Ma{mel L, O'Neill, d/b/a ﬁ’routiar Par/c Resort mzd mem, Cause No.
D-1-GY-10-001692, in the 353"" Distiiet Court of Travis County, Texas, and am aver the age
of sighteen and cmﬁpeténf to metko t‘ms éfﬂclavit,
2. On November 17, 2010, I contacted the United States Department of Defonse
Manpower ﬁettax Cenler and requcsted a search of 1 information data banks, 1 pravided the
Depattment of Defense Manpower Datd Center with the Sovtal Seourity Number for Defendant

Michael L. O™Nelll, The results of that gearch indicate that Defendant Michae! L. O"Nelll s

cutrently not on active military duty ag to gll branches of {he Unitecl States military, Atrueand






sorrect copy of the search resulty iy attached hereto ag Exhibit “A”,

éf\fww @mww

WANDA PITTMAN
Legal Asslatant

(7% 9010,

s o STV A N D U b o g i
AT, GREGORIAA BANDA §,
y : Moty Publia -

\ | BTATH QU TEXAS , ﬁ 6
S ot it A 000 en Lol it ..
Rty withoul freni Notary Pu o in and for the Stale of Texas

Cutdy Ded -G 0-00169 2FRONTIER2/PIalnlfl"s Soldier's and Saitor’s Afldavit Page 2 of2

SWORN TO and SUBSCRIBED before me by Wands Pittman on November

LA
"W".l,

1.\‘

oy "il’
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, ONﬁIIJL ‘.MICL*IAEL"; B-asqd Lm the iri{"qmiaﬂon you have ',f\pjik}.ishad,’ the DMDC does not possess

Requeét for Military Status Page 1 of 2

Department of Dofense Manpower Data Centor : ' Noy-17-2010 13;05:57 '

A .
L Mty Statns Report
“..ﬁ;'.* Putstiant 1o°the Sérvive Membess Civil Reliel Act
e EH '

o e A ' Sotvies
Pirst/Middle _quln Dafo Active Duty Status Active Duty Bud Date | o0

L any- Information Indloatl ‘the individugl statig,

T e e A

Upon searching fho Information data banks of the Dépattment of Dofense Manpower Data Centé, based

o, the riformation that you provided, the above 1y the owrrent statig of the individual ag lo all branohes

?3{" thtz1 §Jni1‘ormed Bervices (Arnty, Navy, Marine Corps, Adt Force, NOAA, Public Health, and Coust
ward), .

- o that query,

Maty M, Snavely-Dixon, Direotor

e '_‘Dc%p,a}rtxytent_ of Defonse » Manpower Data Center

1600 Wilson Blvd, Suite 400

Axlington, VA 22209-2593
The Defense Manpower Dala Contex (DMIC) is an ovganization of the Department of Defonsa that
malniaing the_‘Defanne.l‘-_?.m‘c_)liment and Bliglbility Reporting Bystem (DEERS) database whioh is the
offioial souroe of data on eligibility for milltacy miedical cate and other eligibility systems. s

The Dol strongly supporty the enforoement of the Service Members Civil Retlef Act (50 USC App, §§ o

501 ot gaq, 4 amendad) (SCRA) (Formerly known as the Soldiers' and Saflors' Civil Rellef Act of 1940). o

DMDC has {ssued hundreds of thousandls of "does not possess any Information indientlng that the
individual Is currently on active duty" responses, and hag experionced a small error sate, In the event the
individual referenced ubove, ok any family mamber, flend, or represeniative assells in any manner that
the indtvidun! is on notlve duty, or ls otherwise entitted to the prolections of the SCRA, you are strongly
enoouraged to obtain further yorification of the petson's status by ocontacting that person's Service via the

" idefangelinkmil® URT, hitwlwwwm@fw_wli%nﬂl!f&g/.}liﬂ[li@.gQSLD.&MmL 1f you have evidence the

petson’ s on aotive duty and you Tall to obtaln this additional Service verifloation, punitive provisians of
the SCRA. may be invokud agalnst you. See 50 USC App. §521(0)

fyou obtain additional informetion about the person (.., on BON, improved acouracy of DOB, &
middle name), you can submit your request again af this Web stle gnd we will provide a new certificate

.

This response reflects actlye duty staing including date the individual was last on aotlve duty, If it was
within the procuding 367 days. For Wistorlent information, please contact the Service SCRA polnta-of-
pontact,

httpa;://www.clmdu,osd,mil/appj/acm/poprcsport.do 111712010





" PUTTHSLTOTS, SOnTe Protseiions oF the S CRAIEY BRIHA 16 Hoiony WHE TEVS 16081ed Silsi o epoit”

Request for Military Status ‘ Page 2 of 2

More Infarmation on YAeitve Duty Simtus” '

Actlve duty staius as reported fn thiy cortificate is defined In accordance with 10 USE § 1011 for &
petiod of more than 30 consecutive days, In the oase of 4 member of the Natlonal Guard, Inelndes
servios under a oall to aotive servicw wuthoxized by the President or the Secratary of Defense for a period
wl'more than 30 conseouttve days under 32 USCH § 502(F) for purposes of responding to & natlonsl
emergency declared by the President and supported by Rederal finds, All Aoctlve Guard Reserve (AGR)
membery must be assignod against an authorized mobilization position in the unif they stpport, This
Inoludes Navy TARs, Matine Corps ARs.and Coast Guard RPAs, Adtive Duty status also applies to a
Uniformed Setvice member who is an adtive dnty commlssloned officef of the 0,8, Public Health
Service or the National Qoeanlo and Atmospherlp Adminisiration (NOAA Commissloned Corps) for &
pertod of more than 30 consecutive days,

Coverage Under the SCRA Is Broadey in Some Coses i '
Coverage uncler the SCRA is broadet in some oases and inoludes some categories of persons on aotive
duty for putposes of the SCRA who would 1ot be reported as on Active Duty under this certifioate,

“ Many thmes orders are nmended to extend the perlod of aotive duty, which wold extend SCRA
protections, Persons seeking to rely en this website certification shovld oheok to make sure the ordets on
which SCRA protections are based have not been amended to extend the Inoluslve dates oF servive. \

for aottye duty or to be induotad, but who have not actually begun aotive duty-or actually yeported for

Induotion, The Last Date on Aotlve Duty ontry Is important because n mimber of proteotions of SCRA

extend beyond the last dates of active duty,

Those who would rely on this ceriificate are wrged to seek qualified legel counsel to ensure that all riphts
guarnoteed to Service members under the SCRA e prolected,

WARNING: This certifioate was provided based an o name and SSN provided by the requester,

Providing an ertoneows name or B8N will cause an etroneons certifioate to be provided, '
Report ID:USOKGEGEC2 ‘ ' .

hitpa//www.dmde,osdanil/appi/sora/popreport,do 111772010





M

. 'moNTxLR PARK msom nnd

Fllgd
40 Novamber 30 P66
.-, Amalla Rodrigtiez-Mendoza
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IN T‘HD DISTRICT COURT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS.
MICHARL L. O'NEILL, d/bla A

8
8

§
: §-‘

§

the State o Trsxéls'iﬂni the above taptioned matter, | am capable of mal thlsafﬂdawt The

facts stated in this affidavit ae within my personal knowledge and are true and corraot.

2. T am o Heensed attorney-in the State of Texas and have been lcensed since

Novcmbaré 2002,
4. 1 am generally familiar With the value of services of an attornay ol'wy

exparience, mputation, and abitity in Travis County and correspondingly value nty time at

$2.25.00 per hour, which I belleve to b 1 modest and reasonable xate, The rate for the lepal

agsiatants is $85.00 per hour, whioh 1 belleve to be 8 modest and reasonable rate.






4, Tspent 115,25 hours working on this case, These hours comprised file review,
legal research, drafting of pleadings, and conferring with agency personnel,

5, The amount of time for legal aeaistant services performed Wanda Pithman, a
legal asslstant employed by the Environmenial Proteotion and Adminiétyatlve Law Ii)lvisioln
of the Office of the Artdrhéy Géneral, wérk:ihg, ort the case t'ot‘als. 12'.25 'ho"urs.“ .

6, 1 vonsequently request that the sourt award attorney's fees in the amount of
$26,972,50, which I beliave to be 8 modsst and reasonable fee, These feos wore reasanabla
and neoessaty for the services performed,

70 Inthoovent iatproceedings to collect Jndgmentin this sae b necessary,
I belisve that additional attorneys fees In the mmount of $2,000.00 would be a rensonable
amount, 1 the event of an appeal of thig judgment to the Court of Appeals, T belieye that
additional attorngy’s fees in the wmowit of §5,000,00 would be a reasonable amount. In the

event of a pelition for review before the Texas Supreme Court by the Defendant of this

Judgment, T believe that additlonal attornsy’s fees in the amount of £8,000.00 would be o

reasonable amount, And, inthe eyent that the Texas Supreme Court should grant review of
the petition by the Defoudant of this judgment, I bellave that additional attorney’s fees In the
amount of $15,000.00 would be a reasonable amount, I therefore request that the Court

avard attorney’s fees in these amounts, which I belleve to be modest and reasonable,

(O @Zig

DAVID GREEN

2





Al

Asslstarit Aftorney General
State Bar No, 24037776 -
On this day personally appeared DAVID GREEN, known to me to be the person
wawhose “ninimie s “Silbiciibiad 1o the foregoiiy nstilient, and after being duly sworn,
acknowledged to me that he execitlad the same for the purposes and consideration thereln

e - Fe ek "'}- S st e .';: R . AR AL ‘4;{“”‘ et
Given under my hand and sea ofoffioe an Noverbee S0, 2010

o0 s 7 At

Notaty Pulic i nd for the State o Texas

et Bt st 1L AR ATY AT RPN

GREGARLY A, BANDA

ANl L Relery Publie..
S TATI OF TEXAS -
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Bryan W. Shaw, Ph.D., Chalrman
Carlos Rublnsteln, Commissioter
Toby Baker, Commissioner

Zalk Covay, Executive Divector

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Protecting Texas by Redueing and Preventing Pollution

August 1, 2013

Via Hand Delivery
via Certified Mail Return Receipt Requested

Article No. 7002 0860 0004 6476 5485 -
Via First Class Mail, Postage Pre-Paid /

Mr. Michael Lantz O'Nelll
360 Frontler Drive
Hemphill, Texas 75948

Re: Michael Lantz O'Nelll d/b/a Frortier Park Resort and Marina - f O, 3 D é{_ WA
Docket Nog, 2013~1429-UCR-E and 2013-1405-UCR~E
Notice of Emergency Order and of Hearing to Modify, Affirm, or Set Aside

Dear Mr. Q'Neill:

On August 1, 2013, the Executive Director of the Texas Commisslon on
Environmental Quality (the “Commission” or *“TCEQ") Issued two Emergency Orders
pursurant to TeX. WATER CODE chs. 5 and 13, Tex. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ch. 341, and
30 TEX, ADMIN. CODE chs, 35, 290, 291 and 305. The party made the subject to this
order Is Michael Lantz O'Neill d/b/a Frontler Park Resort and Marina. The
Emergency Orders appolnted the Sabine River Authority of Texas ("SRA") as
temporary manager of the public water system and wastewater treatment system
located off Ranch Road 1, Box 1690, Hemphill, Sablne County, Texas,

Pursuant to TEx. WATER CODE § 5,504 the Commission will consider whether to
affirm, modify, or set aside the Emergency Orders lssued on August 1, 2013,
Therefore, the Executive Director has schaduled thls matter to be presented at the
Commission’s regular Agenda meeting on September 4, 2013. The Agenda
begins at 9:30 a.m, and will be held at TCEQ Park 35 Complex, 12118 North
IH~35, Building E, Room 201 S, Austin, Texas, A copy of the racord of the
materials which have been submitted to the Chief Clerk’s Office and will be used In
the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Agenda process will be provided to
you at a later time.

0. Box 13087 ¥ Austin, Texas 78711:3087 *  512-239-1000 ¢ feeqlexasgov

How is our costomer servigs?  feeq texas,gov/oustomensarvey

printed-on recycied paper using veyatabla-based ink





Mr. Michael Lantz O'Nelll
August 1, 2013
Page 2

Additionally, please be advised that, pursuant to 30 TEX. ADMIN, CODE § 35.25(c),
you may request at the time of the Agenda an evidentiary hearing on
issuance of the Emergency Orders, An Administrative Law Judge will be
available to conduct a hearing at Agenda on September 4, 2013, should you so
request. Should you have ‘ahy questions, please contact Ms, Stephanie Frazee, Staff
Attorney in the TCEQ Litigation Divislon at (512) 239-0600.

Sincerely,

S, C Dy

Kathleen C. Decker, Director
Office of Legal Services, Litigation Division
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Enclosure

cc:  Mr. Ronald Hebert, Water Section Manager, Beaumont Regional Office
Mr. Terence Webb, Receivership Coordinator
Mr. Blas Coy, Office of Public Interest Counsel
Sablne River Authority of Texas, P, 0. Box 579, Orange, TX 77631-0579





AFFIDAVIT OF RONALD HEBERT

STATE OF TEXAS

wrun uwn

COUNTY OF SABINE

My name is Ronald Hebert. I am the Water Section Manager for the
Beaumont Regional office of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. I am
of sound mind, capable of making this affidavit, and the facts stated in this affidavit
are within my personal knowledge and are true and correct.

On August 6, 2013, on behalf of the Executive Director of the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality, I personally hand delivered to Michael Lantz
O'Neill at 360 Frontier Drive, Hemphill, Texas 75948, the wastewater and drinking
water Notices and Emergency Orders set for the September 4, 2013, Commission
Agenda,

DR

Ronald Hebert
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day appeared Ronald Hebert,
personally known to me to be the person whose name Is subscribed to the foregoing
instrument and upon his oath acknowledged to me that the facts herein are true and
correct.

{‘\A
Given under my hand and seal of office this (‘? day of August, A.D., 2013,

(g

otary Signature

s






K





AFFIDAVIT OF MARGARET WILSON
STATE OF TEXAS 8

8
COUNTY OF TRAVIS 8

My name is Margaret Wilson., I am a Legal Secretary in the Office of Legal
Services at the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. I am of sound mind,
capable of making this affidavit, and the facts stated in this affidavit are within my
personal knowledge and are true and correct.

On August 1, 2013, I prepared the mailing for Docket Nos. 2013-1405-UCR-E
and 2013-1429-UCR-E, Emergency Orders in the matter of Michael Lantz O'Neill
d/b/a Frontier Park Resort and Marina. The Emergency Orders and cover letter were
mailed on August 6, 2013,

Phogened bLotbon

Margaret Wilson
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared
Margaret Wilson, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that she executed the same for the
purposes and consideration herein expressed.

Given under my hand and seal of office this 16th day of August, A,D., 2013,

BV erau

Notary Stamp | Notary Signature

BRITTANY MASON 2
" Notary Publio, State of Toxas
My Commlaston Explres |9
EERUARY, 08,2018 ___}

Notary without Bond











Executive Summary - Enforcement Matter Page 1 of 4
Michael Lantz O'Neill d/b/a Frontier Park Resort and Marina
RN101278034
Docket No. 2013-1405-UCR-E

Order Type:
Emergency Order

Findings Order Justification:
N/A

Media:

MWD

Small Business:
Yes

Location(s) Where Violation(s) Occurred:
6 miles east of Milam in Carrice Creek, Sabine County, Texas

Type of Operation:
Wastewater treatment system and retail public utility (Sewer Utility)

Other Significant Matters:
Additional Pending Enforcement Actions:  None

Past-Due Penalties: $7,703.85 (Docket No. 2007-0712-PWS-E) and
$64,066.00 (Docket No. 2007-0449-MLM-E)

Past-Due Fees: $737.40

Other: . Pending action for contempt and abstract of judgment
at Office of Attorney General, referred on April 16, 2013

Interested Third-Parties: None

Texas Register Publication Date: N/A

Comments Received: Pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE § 7.075, publication is not required
for an Emergency Order.

Penalty Information

Total Penalty Assessed: N/A
Amount Deferred for Expedited Settlement: N/A
Amount Deferred for Financial Inability to Pay: N/A
Total Paid to General Revenue: N/A
Total Due to General Revenue: N/A
SEP Conditional Offset: N/A

Compliance History Classifications:
Person/CN - N/A
Site/RN - N/A

Major Source: No
Statutory Limit Adjustment: N/A
Applicable Penalty Policy: N/A





Executive Summary - Enforcement Matter Page 2 of 4
Michael Lantz O'Neill d/b/a Frontier Park Resort and Marina
RN101278034
Docket No. 2013-1405-UCR-E

Investigation Information

Complaint Date(s): NA

Date(s) of Investigation: August 29, 2009, February 28, 2011, May 30, 2013, July 16, 2013, and
July 29, 2013

Date(s) of NOV(s): N/A

Date(s) of NOE(s): N/A

Violation Information

Abandoned operations [TeEX. WATER CODE 8§ 13.412(f) and 13.4132 and 30 TeX. ADMIN. CODE
§ 291.142(c)].

Corrective Actions/Technical Requirements

Corrective Action(s) Completed:

N/A

Technical Requirements:

1.

Immediately upon the effective date of the Emergency Order, Sabine River Authority ("SRA") shall
serve as temporary manager until a receiver is appointed or 180 days after the effective date of
the Emergency Order; i.e. January 28, 2014, whichever occurs first.

SRA is authorized to exercise those powers and duties necessary to ensure the continued
operations of the Sewer Utility and the provision of continuous and adequate services to
customers, including the powers and duties set forth in TEX. WATER CODE § 13.4132.

SRA shall give the Executive Director an inventory of all Sewer Utility property received within
sixty (60) days of the effective date of this Order.

SRA’s requirement to post financial assurance with the TCEQ in an amount and type acceptable to
the Executive Director has been waived by the Executive Director pursuant to 30 TEX. ADMIN, CODE
§ 291.143(c).

SRA’s compensation will come from Sewer Utility revenues in the amount of fifteen dollars
($15.00) per month per customer.

SRA shall report to the Executive Director on a monthly basis in accordance with 30 TEX. ADMIN,
CoDE § 291.143(h).

Litigation Information

Date Petition(s) Filed: N/A
Date(s) Green Card(s) Signed: N/A
Date(s) Answer(s) Filed: N/A

SOAH Referral Date: N/A
Hearing Date(s):

Preliminary hearing: N/A





Executive Summary - Enforcement Matter Page 3 of 4
Michael Lantz O'Neill d/b/a Frontier Park Resort and Marina
RN101278034
Docket No. 2013-1405-UCR-E

Evidentiary hearing: N/A

Contact Information

TCEQ Attorneys: Stephanie Frazee, Litigation Division, MC 175, (512) 239-3400
Lena Roberts, Litigation Division, MC 175, (512) 239-3400

TCEQ SEP Coordinator: N/A

TCEQ Enforcement Coordinator: Remington Burklund, Enforcement Division, MC 219, (512) 239-
2611 ‘

TCEQ Regional Contact: Mr. Ronald Hebert, Section Manager, Beaumont Regional Office, MC R-10,
(409) 898-3838

Respondent: Michael Lantz O'Neill, 360 Frontier Drive, Hemphill, Texas 75948
Respondent's Attorney: N/A

Background Facts:
The Sewer Utility provides wastewater treatment service to approximately 38 full-time residences as

well as rental units, a store, and a restaurant. The Sewer Utility charges $55.66 per month for water,
wastewater, and trash.

On August 26, 2008, the Commission issued Default Order Docket No. 2007-0449-MLM-E against
Michael Lantz O'Neill d/b/a Frontier Park Resort and Marina for humerous PWS and WW violations. On
March 17, 2010, the case was referred to the Office of Attorney General. On December 20, 2010, the
353 Judicial District in Travis County issued a Default Judgment and Permanent Injunction against
Mr. O'Neill.

During an investigation conducted on February 28, 2011, a TCEQ Beaumont Regional Investigator
documented that Mr. O'Neill was not in compliance with the Default Judgment.

On April 16, 2013, the TCEQ referred the case back to the Office of Attorney General to pursue
contempt and abstract of judgment for the Default Judgment.

On May 30, 2013, a TCEQ Beaumont Regional investigator documented that the Sewer Utility was
continuing to discharge untreated wastewater into Toledo Bend Reservoir.

On July 29, 2013, a TCEQ Beaumont Regional investigator observed that the Sewer Utility was
continuing to discharge untreated wastewater into Toledo Bend Reservoir near a public boat ramp that
was being used for fishing at the time of the investigation. The investigator also observed that the
collection [ift station pump was running but not pumping sewage from the lift station and that the lift
station had a remaining capacity of 2 feet before it would overflow. The investigator observed that the
fence surrounding the Sewer Utility was missing boards and the gate was unlocked, that the Sewer
Utility was in a state of severe disrepair with heavy corrosion on most of the above-water metal
components, that the mixed liquor in the aeration basin appeared darker and thicker than healthy
mixed liquor should appear, that the clarifier and chlorine basin were full of sludge, and that the
disinfection equipment was non-functional. The investigator observed that the Sewer Utility was
failing to provide appropriate wastewater treatment and failing to adequately maintain facilities
resulting in potential health hazards.

A potential health hazard exists as a result of the Sewer Utility’s failure to provide continuous and
adequate wastewater treatment. The Sewer Utility is overflowing at the lift station and discharging
untreated wastewater into Toledo Bend Reservoir. Immediate repairs to the Sewer Utility are
necessary to ensure abatement of the threats to human health and water quality and to ensure the
Sewer Utility operates in a safe manner and meets requirements in the Texas Water Code, the Texas
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Health & Safety Code, and TCEQ rules. Therefore, a temporary manager is necessary to operate the
Sewer Utility to ensure the quality of the water meets TCEQ rule requirements, complies with the
Texas Water Code and the Texas Health & Safety Code, and is safe for human health and the

environment.

On August 1, 2013, the Executive Director issued an Emergency Order appointing Sabine River
Authority as Temporary Manager for the Sewer Utility. Therefore, Executive Director is requesting that

the Emergency Order appointing Sabine River Authority as Temporary Manager be affirmed as
modified.





